
 

Supervisor Keith Carson, Chair 
Alameda County 

Supervisor Nora Vargas, Vice-Chair 
San Diego County 

The Voice of Urban Counties: Alameda • Contra Costa • Fresno • Los Angeles • Orange • 

Riverside • Sacramento • San Bernardino • San Diego • San Francisco • San Joaquin •  

San Mateo • Santa Clara • Ventura 

UCC Board of Directors’ meetings conducted via Zoom are recorded. 

Board of Directors’ Meeting 
Wednesday, January 24, 2024  4:00 – 5:30 p.m. 

Zoom link: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89798857259?pwd=6inyitmDEGVNz50Zn40pNc93JO6ybw.1 

Meeting ID: 897 9885 7259 | Passcode: 389400 | One tap mobile: +16699006833,,89798857259#,,,,*389400# 

AGENDA 

4:00 I. Call to Order Supervisor Carson 

II. Roll Call of Counties Grace Ferguson 

III. Approval of November 15, 2023 Meeting Minutes –

ACTION ITEM

Supervisor Carson 

4:05 IV. Association Matters

IV-A: Introduction and Welcome of New Members

IV-B: 2024 Chair and Vice-Chair Election – ACTION ITEM

IV-C: Proposed 2024 Board Meeting Dates

Supervisor Carson/ 

Supervisor Vargas 

UCC Staff and 

Advocacy Team 

4:20 V. UCC Advocacy

V-A: The Bob Report

V-B: 2024 UCC Advocacy Priorities – ACTION ITEM

V-C: Review and Discuss Staff Recommendation for UCC

Position on Prop 1 (March 2024 Ballot) – ACTION 

ITEM 

V-D: Review of Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget

Proposal 

V-E: Legislative Update

Supervisor Vargas 

UCC Advocacy Team 

4:50 VI. Public Comment Members of Public 

4:55 VII. Topics for Next Meeting – March 13, 2024 via Zoom All 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89798857259?pwd=6inyitmDEGVNz50Zn40pNc93JO6ybw.1


− Review any revisions to UCC’s 2024 Policy Priorities

following March 2024 election

− Major 2024 bill proposals of interest

5:00 VIII. Supervisor Roundtable Board Members 

5:30 IX. Adjournment Supervisor Vargas 



 
The Voice of Urban Counties: Alameda • Contra Costa • Fresno • Los Angeles • Orange • 

Riverside • Sacramento • San Bernardino • San Diego • San Francisco • San Joaquin •  

San Mateo • Santa Clara • Ventura 

Supervisor Keith Carson, Chair 
Alameda County 

Supervisor Nora Vargas, Vice-Chair 
San Diego County

UCC Board of Directors’ Meeting 
Summary 

November 15, 2023 

Alameda:  Supervisor Keith Carson, Susan Muranishi, Amy Shrago, Laura Lloyd 

Contra Costa Supervisor John Gioia (Alternate), Geoff Neill, Michelle Rubalcava 
Fresno: Supervisor Buddy Mendes 

Los Angeles: Samara Ashley, John Skoglund 
Orange: Supervisor Doug Chaffee, Supervisor Vicente Sarmiento, Al Jabbar, Peter 

DeMarco, Yasie Goebel, Brandy Miller, Nicole Wordelman 

Riverside: Supervisor Manuel Perez, Supervisor Chuck Washington, Carolina Herrera 
Sacramento: Supervisor Rich Desmond 

San Bernardino: Supervisor Jesse Armendarez, Leia Fletes, Nicole Wordelman 

San Diego: Supervisor Nora Vargas, Caroline Smith, Matthew Parr, Jonathan Clay, Geoff 

Neill, Michelle Rubalcava 

San Francisco: 
San Joaquin: Supervisor Tom Patti 

San Mateo: Supervisor David Canepa, Connie Juarez-Diroll, Kevin Hefner 

Santa Clara: Supervisor Susan Ellenberg, Mayra Flores, David Campos, Elaine Trinh, Melissa 
Lovato, Josh Tosney 

Ventura: Supervisor Kelly Long, Supervisor Vianey Lopez, Dr. Sevet Johnson, Michele 

Guzman 
UCC Staff/Advocates: Elizabeth Espinosa, Jean Hurst, Kelly Brooks-Lindsey, Josh Gauger, Chris Lee, 

Grace Ferguson 

Guests: Diane Cummins, Karen Pank, Steve Szalay 

UCC Sponsors: Citi: Chris Mukai, Eric Rodriguez, Victor Andrade, Debra Saunders | Falcon: 

Ben Rice | Indivior: Dani Campbell | Kaiser: Rose Works, Marty Ardron, 
Jennifer Scanlon, Jim O’ Gara | PARS: Ryan Nicasio | Raymond James: Guy 

Logan, Emily Giles 

I. Call to Order
UCC Chair Supervisor Keith Carson convened the meeting and called the members to order.

II. Roll Call of Counties
There were 11 supervisors, 1 alternate and 13 counties represented at this meeting.

1



III: Approval of September 20, 2023, Meeting Minutes – ACTION ITEM – APPROVED 

A motion was made to approve the September 20, 2023, minutes. Below is the vote count: 

Member County Yes No Absent Not 

Voting 

Supervisor Carson, Chair Alameda X 

Supervisor Vargas, Vice-Chair San Diego X 

Supervisor Glover (Alternate) Contra Costa X 

Supervisor Mendes Fresno X 

Supervisor Barger Los Angeles X 

Supervisor Chaffee Orange X 

Supervisor Perez Riverside X 

Supervisor Desmond Sacramento X 

Supervisor Armendarez San Bernardino X 

Vacant San Francisco X 

Supervisor Patti San Joaquin X 

Supervisor Canepa San Mateo X 

Supervisor Ellenberg Santa Clara X 

Supervisor Long Ventura X 

Vote Total 12 2 

IV: Association Matters 

IV-A: RFI Response for UCC Association Management and State Advocacy Services; recommendations
for next steps – ACTION ITEM – APPROVED
The UCC Working Group of Governmental Affairs that managed the advocacy and association
management Request for Interest (RFI) process as directed by the Board of Directors at its September
20 meeting provided an update. The RFI was released on September 25; responses were due back to
working group representatives by October 20. Only one firm – Hurst Brooks Espinosa, LLC – responded;
the HBE response met or exceeded the requirements of the RFI.

Accordingly, the working group staff recommended that the Chair and Vice Chair enter into 
negotiations to award a contract to Hurst Brooks Espinosa for a term of three years with two one-year 
options. An option can be provided in the contract to sub-contract with additional firm(s) should they 
choose. 

A motion was made to approve the working group staff recommendation regarding next steps to 
execute an extension to the advocacy and association management contract. Below is the vote count: 

Member County Yes No Absent Not 

Voting 

Supervisor Carson, Chair Alameda X 

Supervisor Vargas, Vice-Chair San Diego X 

2



Member County Yes No Absent Not 

Voting 

Supervisor Glover (Alternate) Contra Costa X 

Supervisor Mendes Fresno X 

Supervisor Barger Los Angeles X 

Supervisor Chaffee Orange X 

Supervisor Perez Riverside X 

Supervisor Desmond Sacramento X 

Supervisor Armendarez San Bernardino X 

Vacant San Francisco X 

Supervisor Patti San Joaquin X 

Supervisor Canepa San Mateo X 

Supervisor Ellenberg Santa Clara X 

Supervisor Long Ventura X 

Vote Total 12 2 

IV-B: Report on UCC’s Year-to-Date Budget
Staff provided the Board with a handout detailing the budget-to-actual update on the association’s
budget for the first quarter of 2023-24. The budget remains status quo.

IV-C: Call for 2024 Vice-Chair Nominations
Staff provided an overview of the process for UCC Vice-Chair nominations, as detailed in the
association by-laws, noting these key points:

• The chair and vice-chair serve one-year terms.

• Each year during the in-person Board of Directors’ meeting held in conjunction with the CSAC
Annual Meeting, the Chair announces the call for nominations for the upcoming year’s vice-
chair. The current year vice-chair is presumed to be elevated to the chair position, as affirmed
by the vote of the Board.

• Nominations can be self-made or offered by another board member.

• The Board will consider and vote on the chair and vice-chair appointments at the first meeting
in 2024.

The Board opened the floor for discission and nominations. Supervisor Susan Ellenberg from Santa 
Clara County nominated Supervisor Rich Desmond from Sacramento County. No other nominations 
were made at that time. However, nominations remain open and may be submitted to the UCC 
Association Administrator by email on or before January 12, 2024. Staff will present all nominations 
received to the Board for action during the January 2024 meeting.  

IV-D: 2024 UCC Conflict of Interest Policy – ACTION ITEM – APPROVED
As required in the by-laws, the UCC Board of Directors reviewed the 2024 Conflict of Interest Policy.

3



A motion was made to adopt the 2024 UCC Conflict of Interest Policy and approved. Below is the vote 
count: 

Member County Yes No Absent Not 

Voting 

Supervisor Carson, Chair Alameda X 

Supervisor Vargas, Vice-Chair San Diego X 

Supervisor Glover (Alternate) Contra Costa X 

Supervisor Mendes Fresno X 

Supervisor Barger Los Angeles X 

Supervisor Chaffee Orange X 

Supervisor Perez Riverside X 

Supervisor Desmond Sacramento X 

Supervisor Armendarez San Bernardino X 

Vacant San Francisco X 

Supervisor Patti San Joaquin X 

Supervisor Canepa San Mateo X 

Supervisor Ellenberg Santa Clara X 

Supervisor Long Ventura X 

Vote Total 12 2 

V. UCC Advocacy
V-A: CalAIM Update
Staff provided a memo providing updates on CalAIM milestones that occurred in 2023 and previewed
the initiatives that will go live in 2024 as well as other Medi-Cal initiatives that will occur in the coming
year. Below are some key points on the topics covered in the memo:

• A small percentage of Medi-Cal recipients are receiving Enhanced Care Management (ECM) –
109,000 out of approximately 14 million enrollees. The Department of Health Care Services
(DHCS_ is working with health plans on referral patterns to improve uptake and access to
Community Supports.

• DHCS moved the go-live date for the justice-involved initiative from April 2024 to October 2024.

• Behavioral Health Payment Reform occurred in July 2023. Many counties and providers have
reported that the transition from cost-based services to fee-for-service is not going smoothly.

• On October 20, 2023, DHCS submitted its application for a new Medicaid Section 1115
Demonstration (BH-CONNECT Waiver) to increase access to and improve mental health services
for Medi-Cal members statewide. CMS has not approved the waiver.

• Medi-Cal initiatives occurring in 2024 outside of CalAIM, include:
o the Continuous Coverage Unwinding, which is the process of redetermining Medi-Cal

eligibility for approximately 1 million beneficiaries per month;
o Managed Care Transition of approximately 1.2 million Medi-Cal members to a new

managed care plan on January 1, 2024.  Another approximately 900,000 beneficiaries
will transition to Kaiser (from a Medi-Cal managed care plan that subcontracts with
Kaiser currently); and

4



o Medi-Cal Asset Test Elimination; and 4) the Medi-Cal Undocumented Adult Expansion
Ages 26-49.

V-B: Preliminary 2024 Advocacy Priorities
Following a review of the processed use to develop ideas for the association’s advocacy priorities, the
UCC Advocacy Team presented five proposed priority advocacy planks for 2024. More detailed
language outlining specific action items under each plank will be presented to the Board at its January
2024 board meeting. The recommend policy priorities will focus on:

1. Urban counties’ continued implementation of key investments and statewide initiatives;
2. Building the state’s critical workforce;
3. Investing in the next generation;
4. Sustaining critical local services in face of economic uncertainty; and
5. Securing California’s future through infrastructure investments.

V-C: UCC 2023 Legislative Year Wrap-Up
Staff presented a final report on legislation on which UCC engaged during 2023, including notable
signing and veto decisions by Governor Newsom. Staff also noted that due to leadership transitions –
effectuated in the Assembly and planned for 2024 in the Senate – changes to committee chairs and
membership should also be expected for the second year of the 2023-24 session.

VI. Public Comment
There were no public comments.

VII. Topics for Next Meeting

• Election of 2024 UCC Chair and Vice-Chair

• 2024 Meeting Dates

• Adoption of Final 2024 UCC Advocacy Priorities

• Review of Governor’s 2024-25 Proposed State Budget

VIII. Adjournment
The next UCC Board of Directors’ meeting will be held on Wednesday, January 24, 2024, at 4:00 p.m.
via Zoom.

5



 
The Voice of Urban Counties: Alameda • Contra Costa • Fresno • Los Angeles • Orange • 

Riverside • Sacramento • San Bernardino • San Diego • San Francisco • San Joaquin •  

San Mateo • Santa Clara • Ventura 

Supervisor Keith Carson, Chair 
Alameda County 

Supervisor Nora Vargas, Vice-Chair 
San Diego County

Item IV-B: Election of UCC 2024 Chair and Vice-Chair 

January 18, 2024 

TO: UCC Board of Directors 

FROM: Hurst Brooks Espinosa 

RE: Election of UCC 2024 Chair and Vice-Chair – ACTION ITEM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: The UCC Board of Directors, in keeping with the process outlined in 
the association’s by-laws as summarized below, will take action to affirm the UCC 2024 Chair 

and elect a 2024 Vice-Chair. 

As discussed at the Board of Directors’ November 2023 meeting, the UCC Board will be asked to 
consider and take action to elect the association’s 2024 officers (chair and vice-chair) at it January 24, 
2024 meeting. 

By way of background, the association’s by-laws outline the UCC officer election process as follows: 

• The UCC chair and vice-chair serve one-year terms.

• Each year at the association’s in-person fall meeting (typically held in November or December),

the Chair calls for nominations for the upcoming year’s vice-chair.

• Nominations for vice-chair can be self-made or offered by another board member.

• While not required, the association’s preference is that the chair and vice-chair within a given

term will represent the north and south regions of the state. The regions are defined as follows:

North South 

Alameda 
Contra Costa  
Sacramento 
San Francisco 
San Joaquin 
San Mateo 
Santa Clara 

Fresno 
Los Angeles 
Orange 
Riverside 
San Bernardino 
San Diego 
Ventura 

6



Election of UCC 2024 Chair and Vice-Chair – ACTION ITEM 
Page 2 

• The sitting vice-chair shall be presumed to move into the chair seat for the following year, but

the Board of Directors must affirm that action with a vote.

• The Board will consider and vote on the chair and vice-chair appointments at the first meeting of

the new year (or as soon as practical thereafter), once new UCC Board members are seated. The

timing aspect of the seating of the UCC chair and vice-chair takes into account possible changes

in the Board of Directors’ composition connected to individual local board appointment

decisions, term limits, and other factors that may result in a new supervisor being named to

represent a member county on the UCC Board.

In accordance with the procedures outlined above, nominations for 2024 UCC Vice-Chair were opened 
at the November 2023 Board meeting. At that time, support for Supervisor Vargas to move into the 
2024 chair slot was expressed. Additionally, Supervisor Ellenberg nominated Supervisor Rich Desmond 
of Sacramento County for the 2024 UCC Vice-Chair role. It also was noted that nominations would 
remain open until January 12, 2024; staff will report at the Board’s meeting next week if any additional 
nominations have been received. 

7



 
The Voice of Urban Counties: Alameda • Contra Costa • Fresno • Los Angeles • Orange • 

Riverside • Sacramento • San Bernardino • San Diego • San Francisco • San Joaquin •  

San Mateo • Santa Clara • Ventura 

Supervisor Keith Carson, Chair 
Alameda County 

Supervisor Nora Vargas, Vice-Chair 
San Diego County

Item IV-C: 2024 UCC Board of Directors’ Meeting Dates 

January 18, 2024 

TO: UCC Board of Directors 

FROM: Hurst Brooks Espinosa 

RE: 2024 UCC Board of Directors’ Meeting Dates 

The UCC Board of Directors will meet in 2024 on the specific dates and times specified in the table 
below. Additional meetings can and may be added to the Board calendar if emergent needs so warrant. 
Except for the April and November in-person meetings, UCC Board meetings will be held via Zoom on 
select Wednesdays at 4 p.m. Meeting topics listed below may be expanded or amended to meet the 
association’s needs and relevant policy developments. 

Date Meeting Topics 

January 24 - Action on UCC Chair/Vice-Chair appointments

- Consideration of position on Proposition 1

- Review of Governor’s 2024-25 Budget Proposal

- Review/approval of UCC’s 2024 Advocacy Priorities

March 13 - Report on UCC’s year-to-date budget

- 2024 bill introductions

April 17 (in person at CSAC Legislative 

Conference in Sacramento) 

- Legislative update

- State budget update

May 22 - Approval of 2024-25 UCC Association Budget

- 2024-25 May Revision

- Legislative update

July 17 - Review of final 2024-25 state budget

- Legislative update

September 25 - End-of-session legislative update

- Review of additional 2024-25 state budget activities

- Review possible positions on November 2024 ballot measures

November 20 (in person at CSAC Annual 

Meeting in Los Angeles County) 

- Report on UCC’s year-to-date budget

- Review of draft 2025 advocacy planks

- Call for 2025 Vice-Chair Nominations

- Adoption of 2025 Conflict of Interest Policy

8



 

Supervisor Keith Carson, Chair 
Alameda County 

Supervisor Nora Vargas, Vice-Chair 
San Diego County 

The Voice of Urban Counties: Alameda • Contra Costa • Fresno • Los Angeles • Orange • 
Riverside • Sacramento • San Bernardino • San Diego • San Francisco • San Joaquin • 
San Mateo • Santa Clara • Ventura 

Item V-B: Review of 2024 UCC Advocacy Priorities 

January 19, 2024 

TO: UCC Board of Directors 

FROM: Hurst Brooks Espinosa  

RE: Review of 2024 UCC Advocacy Priorities – ACTION ITEM 

Recommended action: Consider and take final action on the proposed 2024 UCC Priorities, attached.  

In the attached document, we present for the Board’s action the proposed UCC advocacy priorities for the 2024 
legislative year. It is important to note that the Board previously provided direction that the association should 
focus its top-line priorities on those that (1) are consequential for all urban counties, (2) will help the 
organization project a unified voice, and (3) will assist in educating policy makers about the critical role counties 
play in serving vulnerable populations and preserving the safety net. This list does not, however, represent the 
only policy areas on which UCC will engage nor does it limit the advocacy team’s ability to weigh in on bills or 
budget items in ways that conform with the association’s legislative policies. However, a narrow and integrated 
set of priorities will help the association in its continued efforts to brand the urban county voice, proactively 
advance the urban county perspective, and deliver urban county successes.  

The attached 2024 priorities document has been informed by an initial conversation with the Board at its 
November 2023 meeting on recommended policy planks. You will note that in at least two instances, we have 
referenced the import and potential impact of the voters’ consideration of Proposition 1 at the March 2024 
ballot. The Board may wish to consider a final review of the priorities at its March 2024 meeting to affirm any 
changes that might be necessitated to reflect the ultimate outcome on Proposition 1 in the association’s 
advocacy priorities. 

Finally, the UCC Advocacy Team reviewed the Governor’s proposed 2024-24 spending plan released last week 
and have determined that the proposed priorities appropriately capture the issues of greatest consequence and 
give UCC sufficient flexibility to advocate on behalf of urban counties. 

9



 

Supervisor Keith Carson, Chair 
Alameda County 

Supervisor Nora Vargas, Vice-Chair 
San Diego County 

The Voice of Urban Counties: Alameda • Contra Costa • Fresno • Los Angeles • Orange • 

Riverside • Sacramento • San Bernardino • San Diego • San Francisco • San Joaquin • 

San Mateo • Santa Clara • Ventura 

UCC 2023 Advocacy Priorities 
**DRAFT** Presented to Board of Directors – January 24, 2024 

Taking the Lead: Implementing Investments and Initiatives 

The state continues to rely on counties to partner or lead on solutions to persistent and complex state 
challenges. For both ongoing and future implementation efforts, UCC will work to ensure that urban 
counties have appropriate flexibility and sufficient resources to carry out the following initiatives, each of 
which impose urban county workload in 2024 and beyond. 

▪ CARE Act—UCC will continue to support five urban counties – Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Diego, San
Francisco – that began early implementation in 2023 of the CARE Act (SB 1338, 2022), a new civil court
framework for individuals with severe mental health issues to receive individualized care plans. Additionally,
UCC will provide support and assistance to all urban counties in planning for CARE Act implementation in
advance of the December 1, 2024 effective date for Cohort 2 counties.  Efforts will include:

o Continued collaboration with the California State Association of Counties (CSAC) and the Rural County
Representatives of California (RCRC) to ensure appropriate resources, authority, and flexibility are
provided to maximize success for counties and participants alike;

o Active engagement on any necessary follow-up/clean-up legislation; and
o Continued communication and collaboration with the Administration to share lessons learned from

early implementers’ experiences and prepare for statewide implementation.
▪ Behavioral Health Services Act (BHSA)—Contingent on the voters’ passage of Proposition 1 on the March

2024 ballot, UCC will support urban counties in transitioning to the new funding requirements in 2026, new
reporting requirements, BHSA revenue volatility, as well as accessing the behavioral health infrastructure
bond resources.

▪ Homelessness Solutions— The Governor’s 2024-25 budget proposal does not reduce the previously planned
2023-24 investments in the Encampment Resolution Grant Program ($400 million) or Homeless Housing,
Assistance, and Prevention (HHAP) program ($1 billion). However, the proposal does not include new funding
to extend either program into 2024-25. In response, UCC will continue to:

o Partner with the state to ensure ongoing county service commitments are matched with ongoing
funding.

o Work with the Administration and Legislature to make sure programmatic deadlines and processes
appropriately balance the need for urgent action with the complexity of local solutions and associated
planning.

10



DRAFT 2024 UCC Advocacy Priorities 

January 2024 | Page 2 

▪ Managed Care Organization (MCO) Tax—AB 119 (Chapter 13, Statutes of 2023) authorized an MCO Tax,
effective April 1, 2023, through December 31, 2026. MCO Tax revenues will be used to support the Medi-Cal
program, including, but not limited to, new targeted provider rate increases and other investments that
advance access, quality, and equity for Medi-Cal members and promote provider participation in the Medi-Cal
program. The Department of Health Care Services submitted to the Legislature, as part of the 2024-25
Governor’s Budget, a plan for additional targeted increases to Medi-Cal payments or other investments using
MCO Tax funds deposited in the Medi-Cal Provider Payment Reserve Fund (MPPRF). The investments have the
potential to benefit county health care systems, including county hospitals and clinics. UCC will work to
ensure that MCO Tax revenues maximally benefit urban counties.

▪ Division of Juvenile Justice (DJJ) Realignment—With the passage of SB 823 (2020) and SB 92 (2021),
counties are now responsible for the care, treatment, and – where required – custody of all youth in the
juvenile justice system. As of June 30, 2023, all remaining DJJ facilities have closed and those youth who were
unable to discharge or otherwise transition from DJJ prior to the closure date have been accommodated.  To
create positive youth outcomes, UCC will partner with the Office of Youth and Community Restoration,
support cross-county collaboration, and advocate for state legislation and resources to promote successful
program delivery.

Sustaining Critical Local Services in Face of Economic Uncertainty 

After a prolonged period of economic growth, including two years of somewhat unexpected pandemic-
influenced surpluses, the state is facing its second year of considerable budget shortfalls. Urban county 
advocacy will focus on the following actions to ensure continuity of and sustained service delivery in an era 
of economic contraction: 

▪ Sufficient funding for health and human services, particularly if caseloads begin to increase, to ensure
children, families and seniors have access to critical safety net services.

▪ Sustained and ongoing funding for public health.
▪ Sustained and ongoing funding for behavioral health services, especially in light of the increasing service

demands and potential changes to Mental Health Services Act funding should the voters approve
Proposition 1 on the March 2024 ballot.

Securing California’s Future Through Infrastructure Investments 

The State of California continues to face various challenges to its natural and built environment. Natural 
disasters have always been part of the state’s history, but the impacts of climate change are increasing the 
frequency and severity of wildfires, mudslides, drought, extreme heat, storms, and other events that 
jeopardize the lives and livelihoods of Californians. To secure a safe, resilient, and prosperous future, 
California needs to prioritize investments in its built and natural infrastructure. UCC supports robust, 
ongoing investments into a variety of infrastructure, including: 

▪ Water – In keeping with UCC’s water policy adopted in January 2022, support a combination of state and
federal resources to increase and support sustainable water supply and conservation statewide, sustain
our state’s agricultural economy, and address food insecurity.

▪ Broadband – Support the development of the Statewide Middle-Mile Broadband initiative, including last-
mile investments to ensure counties can bring critical connectivity to unserved and underserved

11



DRAFT 2024 UCC Advocacy Priorities 

January 2024 | Page 3 

communities and for all Californians who need reliable, high-speed connectivity to work, attend school, 
and access healthcare.  

▪ Climate Change and Resiliency – Support investments to reduce the overall risk of climate-driven events
including catastrophic wildfires, flooding, mudslides, extreme heat, and drought. Support funding to adapt
existing infrastructure to withstand the impacts of climate change.

▪ Energy – Support widescale investments to increase California’s supply of green energy while also
maintaining existing energy resources during the green energy transition to ensure the state has a robust
and reliable energy supply.

▪ Transportation – Protect existing transportation funding to support the maintenance and rehabilitation of
the local street and road system. Support increased funding to repair and replace locally owned bridges,
make critical safety improvements to reduce serious injuries and fatalities, add additional bicycle and
pedestrian infrastructure, and adapt the local system to the impacts of climate change.

▪ Housing – Support funding for housing at all ranges of affordability, including tax credits and other direct
subsidies for lower-income housing, subsidies for construction and operation of permanent supportive
housing, and investments in supportive infrastructure for housing at all income levels, especially water,
sewer, and public facilities to facilitate infill growth. Support policy changes that align with infrastructure
investments, including advancing streamlined approval of infill housing projects in unincorporated areas
and ensuring that county land use planning obligations under the Regional Housing Needs Assessment
process and state housing laws are aligned with climate and infrastructure goals.

Building the State’s Critical Workforce 

Despite state support for retention incentives, California continues to face worker shortages across many 
sectors, including county government. Counties are struggling to compete with private sector employers to 
attract and retain workers, especially for some of the most critical services that counties provide – county 
hospitals and clinic systems, public health departments, as well as human services and probation agencies 
offering services to some of California’s most vulnerable populations. Urban counties are keenly aware that 
workforce shortages have a profound impact on Californians served by counties. Accordingly, UCC supports 
state efforts to: 

▪ Expand health care professionals, including physicians, nurses, and behavioral health clinicians.
▪ Expand public health workforce.
▪ Expand Master of Social Work student pipelines.
▪ Expand childcare/early childhood education provider pipeline.
▪ Expand recruitment, training, educational, and advancement opportunities for probation agency

professionals.
▪ Expand other relevant vocational training opportunities, as they relate to county government workforce.

Investing in the Next Generation 

Children are society’s greatest asset, and smart investments in our communities’ youth and the systems 
that support them will drive improved downstream health, social, and educational outcomes. Building on 
important early childhood investments the Newsom Administration has made and recognizing recent policy 
changes that ask counties to expand local responses for some of the most vulnerable young people in our 
communities, UCC will engage in the following advocacy actions: 

12



DRAFT 2024 UCC Advocacy Priorities 

January 2024 | Page 4 

▪ Partner with the state to ensure counties and their community partners have appropriate access to
investments and supports to provide responsive services for youth in the foster care and juvenile justice
systems.

▪ Join with other stakeholders and coalitions to support high-quality early care and early education
programs.

▪ Support services and funding, including for housing, that promote self-sufficiency among transition-age
foster youth, non-minor dependents, former foster youth, and youth/young adults transitioning out of
Secure Youth Treatment Facilities.

▪ Support enhanced child welfare and permanency services.
▪ Support evidence-based child abuse and neglect prevention services.
▪ Engage with the appropriate state departments on policy conversations regarding Short-Term Residential

Therapeutic Program and associated federal waivers.

13



 

Supervisor Keith Carson, Chair 
Alameda County 

Supervisor Nora Vargas, Vice-Chair 
San Diego County 

The Voice of Urban Counties: Alameda • Contra Costa • Fresno • Los Angeles • Orange • 

Riverside • Sacramento • San Bernardino • San Diego • San Francisco • San Joaquin •  

San Mateo • Santa Clara • Ventura 

Item V-C: Consideration of UCC Position on Proposition 1 

January 22, 2024 

TO: UCC Board of Directors 

FROM: Hurst Brooks Espinosa 

RE: Consideration of UCC Position on Proposition 1 (March 2024) – ACTION ITEM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff recommends that the UCC Board of Directors take a SUPPORT 
position on Proposition 1. 

 NOTE: Per the association by-laws, UCC may take a position on a statewide ballot measure with a
majority + one vote (8) of the entire membership.

Background:  

Proposition 1, which will be presented to the voters as the sole ballot measure in the March 2024 
presidential primary, is Governor Newsom’s initiative to (1) reform and reshape the Mental Health 
Services Act into the Behavioral Health Services Act and (2) authorized $6.4 billion in bond funding for 
behavioral health services housing and treatment. Proposition 1 is comprised of specified elements of 
two legislative measures approved in 2023 – SB 326 (Eggman) and AB 531 (Irwin). 

As the Board will recall, UCC sent a letter to Governor Newsom in September supporting AB 531. 
Additionally, UCC Chair Keith Carson sent a letter to Governor Newsom in September reiterating urban 
counties’ collective commitment to working in collaboration with the state on finding innovative and 
creative solutions to help address behavioral health challenges facing our residents. The letter urged the 
Governor to work closely with urban counties toward implementation of the Behavioral Health Services 
Act, should voters approve the ballot measure. (Copies of both letters are attached.) 

Details on Bond Proceeds: 

Proposition 1 would authorize, subject to voter approval, the issuance of $6.38 billion in general 
obligation (GO) bonds to be issued for funding treatment and residential care settings, as well as 
permanent supportive housing for homeless veterans, people experiencing or at risk of homelessness, 
as well as those with behavioral health challenges. It is estimated that the bond would create up to 
4,350 new homes for people who need mental health and addiction services — 2,350 of which would be 
reserved for veterans. 

14



Consideration of UCC Position on Prop 1 – ACTION ITEM 
Page 2 

Allocation of Proposition 1 (2024) Bond Funds 

$2.893 billion Grants for behavioral health treatment and residential facilities, including 
acute and subacute facilities, encompassed under the Behavioral Health 
Continuum Infrastructure Program (BHCIP). 

$1.5 billion Grants specifically for counties, cities, and tribal entities for behavioral health 
treatment and residential facilities including acute and subacute facilities, 
encompassed under BHCIP. 

$1.065 billion Loans or grants to develop supportive housing for veterans. 

$922 million Loans or grants to develop supportive housing. 

California lacks beds to meet behavioral health demand at all three main levels of care. A 2021 RAND 
Corporation study estimated that excluding state hospital beds, California is short about 2,000 acute 
beds and 3,000 beds each at the subacute and community residential levels. Bond resources that will 
allow California to invest in acute and subacute beds for individuals with the highest needs and who may 
be in crisis are critical to meeting the behavioral health needs of our communities. 

Redistribution of MHSA Funding:  

Proposition 1 redistributes the MHSA funds as follows: 

▪ 30% of funds for housing interventions programs, with 50% of these funds used for housing
interventions for persons who are chronically homeless, with a focus on those in encampments, and
up to 25% for capital development projects, as specified. Permits counties with a population less
than 200,000, beginning in fiscal year 2026, to seek an exemption from this requirement, as
specified. Permits other counties, beginning 2032, to seek an exemption from this requirement.

▪ 35% of funds for Full Service Partnerships (FSPs). Permits counties, beginning in fiscal year 2032, to
seek an exemption from this requirement, as specified.

▪ 35% of funds for Behavioral Health Services and Supports (BHSS) for services to children and youth
and adults/older adults, early intervention, outreach and engagement, workforce education and
training, capital facilities and technological needs, and innovative behavioral health pilots and
projects. Requires at least 51% of BHSS funds to be used for early intervention, and 51% of those
funds for programs to serve individuals who are 25 years and younger.

▪ Prudent reserve. Requires counties to calculate a maximum amount from its Local BH Services Fund
not to exceed 20% for the prudent reserve. Requires counties with a population of less than 200,000
to calculate to calculate a maximum amount not to exceed 25%.

▪ Permits a county to transfer up to 14% of the total BHSF funds between one or more of the
purposes detailed above upon approval from DHCS.

At the state level, the measure retains BHSA funds for the following: 

▪ At least 3% of total funds for the Department of Health Care Access and Information (HCAI) to
implement a statewide BH workforce initiative; and

15



Consideration of UCC Position on Prop 1 – ACTION ITEM 
Page 3 

▪ At least 4% to the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) for population-based mental health
and substance use disorder prevention programs, with at least 51% of these funds to be used for
programs serving populations who are 25 years or younger, with specified priorities such as
reduction of stigma and racial disparities.

Notable County Policy Impacts: 

As a reminder, UCC staff discussed policy developments regarding SB 326 and AB 531 at several Board 
meetings in 2023. Additionally, staff conducted in-depth interviews with 10 of the 14 urban county 
members to assess potential benefits, concerns, and other impacts. Some of the concerns raised last 
year include: 

▪ Proposition 1 does not increase the overall funding for mental health services for counties. With
more of the funding required to be used for housing, there will be less funds available for other
services like treatment, crisis response, and outreach.

▪ Urban counties also use MHSA to fund outpatient mental health services and as match for Medi-Cal.
Typically housing is not a Medi-Cal benefit and cannot be matched.

▪ With funding shifting to the state for prevention and early intervention, it is unlikely all local PEI
programs will continue, which would impact communities of color and LGBTQ+ communities.

▪ The shortage of clinical providers and case managers that counties need is unlikely to be addressed
in a meaningful way. Urban counties reported 20 to 30% staff vacancies in county mental health and
behavioral health agencies. Additional detail is needed on how the Administration will spend the
state workforce funds.

Additional details from the Proposition 1 campaign are available here. 

Proposition 1 Support 

− California Professional Firefighters

− California Hospital Association

− Kaiser Permanente

− Sutter Health

− California Medical Association

− SEIU California

− NUHW

− Union of American Physicians and Dentists
(UAPD)

− Steinberg Institute

− NAMI California

− California Veterans Assistance Foundation

− Nation's Finest

− New Directions for Veterans

− Swords to Plowshares

− U.S. Vets

− Veterans Village of San Diego

− The Veteran Mentor Project, Inc.

− Veterans Alliance of Orange County

− California Association of Veteran Service
Agencies

− California Correctional Peace Officers
Association (CCPOA)

− Brooke Jenkins, District Attorney of San
Francisco

− California Statewide Law Enforcement
Association (CSLEA)

− Orange County Coalition of Police and Sheriffs
(OC Cops)

− Peace Officers Research Association of California
(PORAC)

− Sheriff Jim Cooper, Sacramento County

− Sheriff Robert Luna, Los Angeles County

16

https://treatmentnottents.com/


Consideration of UCC Position on Prop 1 – ACTION ITEM 
Page 4 

− The State Building & Construction Trades
Council of California

− Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria

Proposition 1 Opposition 

− Disability rights advocates

− Peer support advocates

− League of Women Voters

17



 
The Voice of Urban Counties: Alameda • Contra Costa • Fresno • Los Angeles • Orange • 
Riverside • Sacramento • San Bernardino • San Diego • San Francisco • San Joaquin •  
San Mateo • Santa Clara • Ventura

Supervisor Keith Carson, Chair 
Alameda County

Supervisor Nora Vargas, Vice-Chair 
San Diego County

September 27, 2023 

The Honorable Gavin Newsom 
Governor, State of California 
1021 O Street, Suite 9000 
Sacramento, CA  95814 

Re: AB 531 (Irwin): The Behavioral Health Infrastructure Bond Act of 2024 
REQUEST FOR SIGNATURE 

Dear Governor Newsom: 

On behalf of the Urban Counties of California (UCC), I write to respectfully request your 
signature on Assembly Bill 531, by Assembly Member Jacqui Irwin, which would enact 
the Behavioral Health Infrastructure Bond Act of 2024, and authorize, subject to voter 
approval, the issuance of $6.38 billion in general obligation (GO) bonds to be issued 
for funding treatment and residential care settings, as well as permanent supportive 
housing for homeless veterans, people experiencing or at risk of homelessness, and 
have behavioral health challenges.  

Urban counties are particularly appreciative of recent amendments that include $1.5 
billion in new bond authority for the purposes of grant funding to local agencies for the 
construction, acquisition, and rehabilitation of infrastructure to expand the continuum 
of behavioral health treatment resources to build new capacity or expand existing 
capacity for a variety of treatment options, including acute and subacute care for 
persons with behavioral health disorders.   

Given the state’s policy direction to counties to prioritize clients with the most acute 
behavioral health needs, urban counties are supportive of ensuring that bond funds 
can be used for acute, subacute and community residential placements. California 
lacks beds to meet behavioral health demand at all three main levels of care. The 
RAND Corporation study estimated that excluding state hospital beds, California is 
short about 2,000 acute beds and 3,000 beds each at the subacute and community 
residential levels. Bond resources that will allow California to invest in acute beds for 
individuals with the highest needs and who may be in crisis are critical to meeting the 
behavioral health needs of our communities. 

18



AB 531 (Irwin) – Request for Signature 
September 27, 2023 | Page 2 

To that end, we are grateful for the additional resources that – upon approval of 
voters – will be made available for these purposes and are in strong support of 
Assembly Bill 531. Please reach out if we can be of additional assistance.  

Sincerely, 

Kelly Brooks-Lindsey 
Legislative Advocate 

cc: The Honorable Jacqui Irwin, California State Assembly 
The Honorable Richard Roth, California State Senate 
The Honorable Susan Eggman, California State Senate 
Jessica Devencenzi, Chief Deputy Legislative Secretary, Office of Governor 
     Gavin Newsom 
Angela Pontes, Deputy Legislative Secretary, Office of Governor Gavin Newsom 

19



 
The Voice of Urban Counties: Alameda • Contra Costa • Fresno • Los Angeles • Orange • 
Riverside • Sacramento • San Bernardino • San Diego • San Francisco • San Joaquin •  
San Mateo • Santa Clara • Ventura

Supervisor Keith Carson, Chair 
Alameda County

Supervisor Nora Vargas, Vice-Chair 
San Diego County

September 25, 2023 

The Honorable Gavin Newsom 
Governor, State of California 
1021 O Street, Suite 9000 
Sacramento, CA  95814 

Re: Behavioral Health Services Act Implementation 

Dear Governor Newsom: 

On behalf of the Urban Counties of California (UCC), I write to respectfully urge 
continued partnership with counties on implementation of the Behavioral Health 
Services Act (SB 326) and Behavioral Health Infrastructure Bond Act of 2024 (AB 531). 
While we are mindful that voters must approve the ballot measure in March 2024, we 
want to reiterate our collective commitment to working in collaboration with the state 
in finding innovative and creative solutions to help address behavioral health 
challenges facing our residents.  

Counties are the key partner responsible for funding and delivering behavioral health 
services to our communities’ most vulnerable Californians. As urban counties, we also 
recognize that almost 80 percent of California’s homeless population reside in our 
counties. To make a significant difference in improving behavioral health services and 
reducing homelessness, urban counties must be working together across systems with 
our private sector partners and across all levels of government. We remain committed 
to working every day in our communities to do better for those experiencing 
behavioral health conditions and those who are homeless.  

The best way to achieve your vision for a modernized behavioral health system is to 
ensure that urban counties are close partners in the coming weeks and months as we 
collectively work towards implementation of the Behavioral Health Services Act. 

To that end, urban county supervisors stand ready to work with your Administration on 
ensuring the behavioral health services changes positively impact the lives of as many 
Californians as possible. Please reach out if we can be of additional assistance.  

20



Behavioral Health Services Act Implementation 
September 25, 2023 | Page 2 

Sincerely, 

Supervisor Keith Carson 
Chair, Urban Counties of California 

cc: Dana Williamson, Chief of Staff, Office of Governor Gavin Newsom 
Richard Figueroa, Deputy Cabinet Secretary, Office of Governor Gavin Newsom 
Christy Bouma, Legislative Secretary, Office of Governor Gavin Newsom 
Jessica Devencenzi, Chief Deputy Legislative Secretary, Office of Governor  
      Gavin Newsom 
Angela Pontes, Deputy Legislative Secretary, Office of Governor Gavin Newsom 
Dr. Mark Ghaly, Secretary, California Health and Human Services Agency 

21



 
The Voice of Urban Counties: Alameda • Contra Costa • Fresno • Los Angeles • Orange • 

Riverside • Sacramento • San Bernardino • San Diego • San Francisco • San Joaquin •  

San Mateo • Santa Clara • Ventura 

Supervisor Keith Carson, Chair 
Alameda County

Supervisor Nora Vargas, Vice-Chair 
San Diego County

Item V-D: Governor’s 2024-25 Proposed Budget 

January 17, 2024 

TO: UCC Board of Directors 

FROM: Hurst Brooks Espinosa 

RE: Review of Governor’s 2024-25 Proposed Budget 

Governor Newsom released his proposed state spending plan for 2024-25 on Wednesday, January 10. 
His 2024-25 January budget is the second consecutive budget during a period of economic decline. 
Indeed, the sobering $68 billion estimated deficit announced in the Legislative Analyst’s Office annual 
Fiscal Outlook released in early December has no doubt weighed heavily on the Administration as it 
prepared its spending plan. In his remarks that accompanied his January budget release, the Governor 
focused keenly on the Department of Finance’s notably revised (yet still immense) $37.9 billion budget 
shortfall. The Legislature will have its first opportunity to publicly review and comment on the 
Administration’s proposed approach this week when both full budget committees meet to receive 
overview presentations from the Department of Finance and LAO. It is worth reiterating that the January 
budget should be considered a framework in anticipation of more details and a better understanding of 
the state’s fiscal position coming to light in the months ahead.  

The UCC Advocacy Team looks forward to discussing the Governor’s 2024-25 budget proposal with the 
Board next week. For ease of reference, we have attached a copy of our comprehensive budget 
summary. 

22



 

Supervisor Keith Carson, Chair 
Alameda County 

Supervisor Nora Vargas, Vice-Chair 
San Diego County 

The Voice of Urban Counties: Alameda • Contra Costa • Fresno • Los Angeles • Orange • 
Riverside • Sacramento • San Bernardino • San Diego • San Francisco • San Joaquin •  
San Mateo • Santa Clara • Ventura

Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024 

This morning, Governor Gavin Newsom – touting a “story of correction and normalization" to the state’s 
General Fund revenues “after a period of distortion” – presented his 2024-25 proposed state budget in 
Sacramento. The Administration has projected $37.9 billion shortfall for 2024-25, far short of the 
previously reported $68 billion budget deficit calculated by the Legislative Analyst’s Office in December; 
the Governor specifically requested on more than one occasion during his presentation that the media 
correct their previous statements to reflect the Administration’s new estimates. Similarly, the Governor’s 
remarks generally adhered to an overarching theme of “it’s not as bad as the naysayers would suggest.” 
That said, the Governor’s proposal includes withdrawing from the state’s Rainy Day Fund, securing 
additional revenues, borrowing from internal special funds, appropriation delays, fund shifts, and 
deferrals to resolve the significant budget shortfall.  

Of course, a considerable portion of the Administration’s fiscal challenges laid in the unprecedented 
deferral of income tax delays by the Internal Revenue Service that precluded the use of taxpayer data to 
develop budget estimates for 2023-24. The Governor repeatedly referenced the delay as the main 
culprit in masking the scope of the revenue decline, as tax receipts reflected 2022 tax liabilities 
associated with the concurrent market downturn. The filing delay also created an truncated timeline to 
prepare the Governor’s budget, leaving the Administration with little time and information to address a 
major revenue dip.  

While market conditions improved in 2023, making the Administration optimistic about 2024 fiscal 
conditions, the Governor cautioned that economic risks remain, including tightening financial 
conditions, stock market and asset price volatility and declines, as well as geopolitical turmoil. 

As described in further detail in relevant policy sections below, the Governor’s budget proposal closes 
the estimated deficit as follows: 

 Reserves ($13.1 billion): The Governor’s budget proposes to withdraw from the state’s budget
reserves, as follows:
− Withdrawal from Mandatory Budget Stabilization Act (BSA) Balance and Transfer Suspension

($10.4 billion)
− Withdrawal from Discretionary BSA Balance ($1.8 billion)
− Withdrawal from the Safety Net Reserve ($900 million)

23

https://ebudget.ca.gov/FullBudgetSummary.pdf


Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 2 

 Reductions ($8.5 billion): The Governor’s budget reduces funding for various items, outlined in
broad categories, as follows:
− Various climate reductions ($2.9 billion)
− Various housing program reductions ($1.2 billion)
− State vacant position funding sweep ($762.5 million)
− School Facilities Aid Program ($500 million)
− Student Housing Revolving Loan Fund Program ($494 million)
− Legislative requests ($350 million)
− University of California Los Angeles Institute of Immunology and Immunotherapy ($300 million)
− Middle Class Scholarship Program ($289 million)

 Revenue/Internal Borrowing ($5.7 billion): The Governor’s budget includes support from revenue
sources and borrows internally from special funds. Some solutions in this category include:
− Increasing the Managed Care Organization (MCO) Tax support for Medi-Cal ($3.8 billion)
− Conforming to the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act Net Operating Loss (NOL) limitation ($300 million)

 Delays ($5.1 billion): The Governor’s budget delays funding for multiple items and spreads
appropriations across the three-year period, beginning in 2025-26, without reducing the total
amount of funding through this period, including:
− Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program ($1 billion)
− Full implementation of DDS service provider rate reform ($613 million)
− Preschool, Transitional Kindergarten, and Full-Day Kindergarten Facilities Grant Program ($550

million)
− Clean Energy Reliability Investment Plan ($400 million)
− Behavioral Health Bridge Housing Program ($235 million)

 Fund Shifts ($3.4 billion): The Governor’s budget shifts certain expenditures from the General
Fund to other funds, as follows:
− Various shifts to the Greenhouse Gas Reduction Fund (GGRF) ($1.8 billion)
− State plans retirement contribution reductions using Prop 2 Debt Repayment Funding ($1.3

billion)
− Unemployment insurance interest payment ($100 million)

 Deferrals ($2.1 billion): The Governor’s budget defers specific obligations to the 2025-26 fiscal
year, including:
− June to July payroll deferral ($1.6 billion)
− University of California and California State University deferrals ($499 million)

In addition to these proposals, the Administration has taken the position that the state’s Proposition 2 
Rainy Day Fund provisions that cap mandatory deposits of General Fund revenues, combined with the 

24



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 3 

provisions of the 1970’s-era Gann Limit provisions of the Constitution must be reformed to improve the 
effectiveness of both measures. Specifically, any additional deposits to the state’s Rainy Day Fund then 
counts as an “expenditure” under the Gann Limit. The Administration suggests working in partnership 
with the Legislature on changes to the law that allow the state to save more during economic upswings, 
enhancing the state’s ability to protect vital programs and services during future budget downturns.  
Finally, the Administration is also proposing to defer all new, discretionary spending decisions until this 
spring (i.e., the May Revision), for discussion with the Legislature, including consideration of resource 
requests associated with recently chaptered legislation.  

Health Care 
Medi-Cal 
Managed Care Organization Tax 

In December 2023, the federal government approved California’s Managed Care Organization Provider 
Tax (MCO Tax), effective April 1, 2023, through December 31, 2026. Given the projected $37.9 billion 
budget shortfall, the Administration is seeking early action by the Legislature to request that the federal 
government approve an amendment to increase the tax to achieve $20.9 billion in total funding to the 
state, an increase of $1.5 billion compared to the approved MCO Tax. The Governor’s budget proposes 
$12.9 billion to support the Medi-Cal program and maintain a balanced budget, and $8 billion for 
targeted rate increases and investments from this MCO Tax. As proposed, the MCO Tax helps maintain 
existing services in the Medi-Cal program and minimizes the need for reductions in the program. The 
Governor’s budget includes $2.8 billion ($1.2 billion Medi-Cal Provider Payment Reserve Fund) in 2024-
25 and approximately $6.5 billion ($2.7 billion Medi-Cal Provider Payment Reserve Fund) in 2025-26 for 
targeted rate increases and investments consistent with the 2023-24, of which $727 million ($291 
million Medi-Cal Provider Payment Reserve Fund) annually is for Medi-Cal provider rate increases 
effective January 1, 2024.  

DHCS indicates that a memorandum will be forthcoming later this week with additional details about 
the proposed provider rate increases. Additionally, there will be trailer bill language on the provider rate 
increases released in February. 

Medi-Cal Caseload and Eligibility Redeterminations 

Following the end of the COVID-19 public health emergency continuous coverage requirement, Medi-
Cal eligibility redeterminations resumed in June 2023. The Governor’s budget assumes Medi-Cal 
caseload of 14.8 million in 2023-24, an increase of 583,000 individuals compared to the 2023-24 
budget. The increase is primarily due to a higher number of individuals remaining eligible for Medi-Cal 
after eligibility redeterminations, which results in increased costs of $2.3 billion ($499 million General 
Fund) in 2023-24 compared to the 2023 Budget Act. Redeterminations are estimated to reduce Medi-
Cal spending by $3.1 billion total funds ($1.2 billion General Fund) in 2023-24. 

Reproductive Health Services Waiver 

The Governor’s budget maintains one-time $200 million ($100 million General Fund) in 2024-25 for the 
California Reproductive Health Access Demonstration Waiver (CalRHAD) to support access to 

25



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 4 

reproductive health services beginning no sooner than July 1, 2024. By 2026-27, $85 million General 
Fund will be offset by Designated State Health Program federal funds. CalRHAD is pending CMS 
approval with program operations to begin no sooner than July 1, 2024 and will promote the following 
objectives: 1) support access to family planning and related services for Medi-Cal members, as well as 
other individuals who may face barriers to access; 2) support the capacity and sustainability of 
California’s reproductive-health safety net; and 3) promote system transformation for California’s 
reproductive-health safety net. 

Proposition 56 

Due to declining Proposition 56 revenues and the General Fund condition, the Governor’s budget 
reduces Proposition 56 funding for physician services supplemental payments by $193.4 million ($77.1 
million Proposition 56) in 2024-25. All other Proposition 56 supplemental payments remain fully funded. 
The Governor’s budget includes $907.4 million ($192.6 million General Fund) for all Proposition 56 
supplemental payments, inclusive of $465.2 million for physician services. Certain providers currently 
receiving Proposition 56 supplemental payments, including physician services, will receive MCO Tax rate 
increases.  

Assisted Living Waiver (ALW) Slot Increase 

The Governor’s budget includes an additional $2.1 million total funds ($0.5 million General Fund 
savings) in 2023-24 and $14.1 million total fund savings ($7 million General Fund) in 2024-25 to 
increase the number of slots for the ALW as the Waiver will reach capacity in 2024-25. This change 
would increase enrollment into the ALW, generating additional Waiver costs. However, to the extent 
that new enrollment is from individuals leaving institutional settings, there would be offsetting savings 
in future years. Additionally, this proposal would result in new costs of $84,000 total funds ($42,000 
General Fund) in 2023-24 and $2.1 million totals funds ($1 million General Fund) in 2024-25 related to 
minimum wage impacts for ALW providers.  

Home and Community Based Alternatives (HCBA) Waiver Slot Increase 

The Governor’s budget assumes an increase in slot allocations for the HCBA Waiver. As some members 
will be transitioning from Skilled Nursing Facilities, a savings of $1.7 million total funds ($866,000 
General Fund) in 2023-24 and $12.9 million total funds ($6.4 million General Fund) in 2024-25 are 
estimated to be realized. Additionally, there would be an increase in administrative costs of $335,000 
total funds ($167,000 General Fund) in 2023-24 and $3.3 million total funds ($1.6 million General Fund) 
in 2024-25. 

2023-24 Budget Update 

The Governor’s budget reflects lower Medi-Cal expenditures of approximately $195.6 million General 
Fund in 2023-24 compared to the enacted budget due to additional support from the MCO Tax and 
updated programmatic timelines of various behavioral health initiatives, offset by increases from a one-
time retroactive state-only claiming repayment, and increased caseload costs.  

26



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 5 

Year-Over-Year Comparison 

The Governor’s budget projects Medi-Cal expenditures of $35.9 billion General Fund in 2024-25, a 
decrease of $1.4 billion General Fund compared to the revised 2023-24 expenditures. 

Withdraw Buyback of Two-Week Checkwrite Hold 

The 2023-24 budget deferred until 2024-25 the planned buy-back of an existing two-week hold on fee-
for-service Medi-Cal payments each June until the following fiscal year. The Governor’s budget 
withdraws the buy-back, resulting in an estimated General Fund savings of $532.5 million in 2024-25. 

Defer Chaptered Legislation Local Assistance Impact 

The Governor’s budget defers the consideration of resource requests associated with recently 
chaptered legislation to the May Revision, including: AB 425 (Chapter 329, Statutes of 2023) related to 
pharmacogenomic testing; AB 1163 (Chapter 832, Statutes of 2023) related to lesbian, gay, bisexual, and 
transgender disparities reduction; SB 311 (Chapter 707, Statutes of 2023) related to Medicare Part A 
buy-in; and SB 496 (Chapter 496, Statutes of 2023) related to biomarker testing. 

Behavioral Health 
CARE Act Implementation 

The Governor’s budget continues to fund the CARE Act implementation at $292 million – no change 
from the proposed amount in the current year budget. The total funds are for the state, counties, and 
court implementation.  

Behavioral Health Continuum Infrastructure Program 

The Governor’s budget assumes that $140.4 million General Fund associated with Round 6 in the BHCIP 
program is delayed from 2024-25 to 2025-26.  

Behavioral Health Bridge Housing 

The Governor’s budget delays $265 million from the Mental Health Services Fund (MHSF) in 2023-24 to 
2024-25 and replaces it with General Fund, addressing a reduction in the amount of MHSF projected to 
be available. Additionally, the Governor’s budget delays the remaining $235 million General Fund 
appropriation originally intended for 2024-25 to 2025-26 

Other Behavioral Health Adjustments 

 Children and Youth Behavioral Health Initiative Wellness Coaches – The Governor’s budget includes
$9.5 million ($4.1 million General Fund) in 2024-25 increasing annually to $78 million ($33.8 million
General Fund) in 2027-28 to establish the wellness coach benefit in Medi-Cal effective January 1,
2025. Wellness coaches will primarily serve children and youth and operate as part of a care team in
school-linked settings and across the Medi-Cal behavioral health delivery system.

27

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB425
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB1163
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB311
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB496


Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 6 

Behavioral Health Community-Based Organized Networks of Equitable Care and Treatment (BH-
CONNECT) Implementation Timeline 

Based on timelines to submit federal waiver applications, the BH-CONNECT demonstration is now 
anticipated to begin January 1, 2025. As a result, costs previously estimated for 2023-24 have shifted to 
2024-25. The Governor’s budget includes $40.6 million total funds ($762,000 General Fund) in 2024-25 
for BH-CONNECT. 

Public Health 
The Governor’s budget does not include cuts or deferrals in the public health budget. 

Workforce 
Health Care Minimum Wage 

SB 525 (Chapter 890, Statutes of 2023) increases the minimum wage incrementally to $25 an hour for 
specified health care workers, effective June 1, 2024. Given the overall economic and General Fund 
revenue outlook and the significant fiscal impact of SB 525 on the state, the Administration is seeking 
early action in January by the Legislature to add an annual “trigger” to make the minimum wage 
increases subject to General Fund revenue availability, clarify the exemption for state facilities, and make 
other implementation clarifications. 

Clinic Workforce Stabilization Payments 

The Governor’s budget includes a reversion of $14.9 million in unexpended General Fund from the one-
time $70 million General Fund included in the 2022 Budget Act for the Clinic Workforce Stabilization 
and Retention Payment Program that was planned to be transferred to the Department of Health Care 
Access and Information for workforce development programs. 

Healthcare Workforce 

The Governor’s budget includes a delay of $140.1 million General Fund to 2025-26 for the nursing and 
social work initiatives administered by the Department of Health Care Access and Information. Given 
lower-than-projected Mental Health Services Act revenue, the Governor’s budget also delays $189.4 
million Mental Health Services Fund to 2025-26 for the social work initiative, addiction psychiatry 
fellowships, university and college grants for behavioral health professionals, expanding Master of 
Social Work slots, and the local psychiatry behavioral health program. Despite the delays, the 
Governor’s budget maintains $974.4 million (General Fund and Mental Health Services Fund) for these 
initiatives; however, the funds will go out later than originally planned. 

Various Other HHS Budget Solutions 
To address the projected budget shortfall, the Governor’s budget proposes General Fund solutions to 
achieve a balanced budget. These include:  

 Safety Net Reserve Withdrawal – $900 million in Safety Net Reserve to maintain existing program
benefits and services for the Medi-Cal and CalWORKs programs.

28

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240SB525


Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 7 

 Health and Human Services Innovation Accelerator Initiative – A delay of $74 million General Fund
until 2025-26 and 2026-27 for the Health and Human Services Innovation Accelerator Initiative.

 Specialty Dental Clinic Grant Program – A delay of $48.8 million General Fund to 2025-26 for the
Specialty Dental Clinic Grant program at the California Health Facilities Financing Authority.

 Healthier at Home Pilot – A reversion of $11.9 million General Fund for the Healthier at Home Pilot
program at the California Department of Aging.

 AIDS Drug Assistance Program Rebate Fund – A budgetary loan of $500 million from the AIDS Drug
Assistance Program Rebate Fund to the General Fund from resources not currently projected to be
used for operational or programmatic purposes.

 Department of Health Care Access and Information Special Funds – Budgetary loans of $50 million
from the Hospital Building Fund, $11 million from California Health Data and Planning Fund, $3
million from the Registered Nurse Education Fund, $1 million each from the Vocational Nurse
Education Fund and the Mental Health Practitioner Fund to the General Fund from resources not
currently projected to be used for operational or programmatic purposes.

 Managed Care Fund – $22.9 million budgetary loan from the Managed Care Fund to the General
Fund from resources not currently projected to be used for operational or programmatic purposes.

Human Services 
While the Governor’s budget largely spares the health and human services sector from direct cuts, the 
two areas where the Administration is proposing budget cuts are to the CalWORKs program and child 
welfare services. Additionally, the Administration is proposing to delay funding for implementation of 
the developmental services rate study by an additional 12 months.  

CalWORKs 
The Administration is proposing over $250 million in ongoing cuts to services and supports related to 
employment for CalWORKs. Some of the cuts are proposed to start in the current year. Additionally, the 
budget includes approximately $40 million in cuts to CalWORKs eligibility funding. In the past counties 
have backfilled eligibility cuts by shifting funds from employment services; however, given the 
magnitude of proposed employment services cuts, it may be difficult to backfill the proposed cut. 
Details of the cuts include: 

 Single Allocation – The Governor’s budget includes a reversion of $336 million General Fund from
2022-23 that is projected to be unexpended in the CalWORKs Single Allocation. The Governor’s
budget also reflects a reversion of $40.8 million General Fund in 2023-24 and reduction of $40.8
million General Fund in 2024-25 and ongoing which was previously approved as part of an ongoing
augmentation for this program. The single allocation is used for eligibility and county administration
of the CalWORKs program.

 Family Stabilization – The Governor’s budget includes a reversion of $55 million General Fund in
2023-24 and a reduction of $71 million General Fund beginning in 2024-25 and ongoing.

 Employment Services Intensive Case Management –The Governor’s budget includes a reduction of
$47 million General Fund beginning in 2024-25 and ongoing.

29



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 8 

 Expanded Subsidized Employment – The Governor’s budget includes a reversion of $134.1 million
General Fund in 2023-24 and a reduction of $134.1 million General Fund in 2024-25 and ongoing.

Work Participation Rate Pilot 
The federal Fiscal Responsibility Act of 2023 allows up to five states to participate in a pilot to promote 
accountability and test alternative benchmarks for work and family outcomes in lieu of the Work 
Participation Rate. California plans to pursue this opportunity to reform the accountability tools in the 
CalWORKs program to improve outcomes for families. It is unclear how the proposed cuts to 
employment services will impact the work participation rate pilot. 

Projected CalWORKs Grant Increase 
The Governor’s budget includes approximately 0.8-percent increase to CalWORKs Maximum Aid 
Payment levels, with an estimated cost of $26.7 million, is projected to begin October 1, 2024. A 
determination and update of the projected grant increase will be made at the May Revision. These 
projected increased costs would be funded entirely by the Child Poverty and Family Supplemental 
Support Subaccount of the 1991 Local Revenue Fund and would be in addition to the 3.6-percent 
statutory increase in 2023-24.  

Children’s Services 
To address the projected budget shortfall, the Governor’s budget includes the following ongoing cuts: 

 Family Urgent Response System – A reduction of $30 million in 2024-25 and ongoing.
 Los Angeles County Child Welfare Services Public Health Nursing Program – A reduction of $8.3

million in 2024-25 and ongoing.
 Housing Supplement for Foster Youth in Supervised Independent Living Placements – A reduction of

$195,000 in 2024-25 and $25.5 million ($18.8 million General Fund) in 2025-26 and ongoing.

Additionally, the Governor’s budget includes the following investments: 

 Child Welfare Services-California Automated Response and Engagement System (CWS-CARES) Project
– The Governor’s budget includes $173.4 million ($88.1 million General Fund) in 2024-25 to support
continued project development and implementation costs, and an additional $52 million ($26
million General Fund) in one-time provisional authority, of the CWS-CARES project. The CWS-CARES
will replace the existing case management system to benefit state, local and tribal child welfare
agencies and will align with state and federal requirements.

 Foster Care Rate Reform – The Governor’s budget includes $12 million General Fund in 2024-25 to
make automation changes for a reformed foster care payment structure, with full implementation
anticipated as early as 2026-27. The new rate system for foster care placements will focus on the
child’s individual level of needs and strengths, rather than the placement type.

30



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 9 

Human Services Housing Programs 
Bringing Families Home Program 

The Governor’s budget delays $80 million General Fund for the Bringing Families Home to 2025-26. 

Home Safe Program 

The Governor’s budget delays $65 million General Fund for the Home Safe Program to 2025-26. 

Housing and Disability Advocacy Program 

The Governor’s budget delays $50 million General Fund for the Housing and Disability Advocacy 
Program to 2025-26.  

In-Home Supportive Services 
The Governor’s budget does not propose cuts or deferrals in the In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) 
budget. The Governor’s budget maintains investments in provider wage increases, a permanent 
provider back-up system, and the full-scope Medi-Cal expansion to IHSS undocumented recipients of 
all ages including the recent expansion for ages 26 to 49, as of January 1, 2024. 

Supplemental Security Income/State Supplementary Payment 
The Governor’s budget does not propose cuts or deferrals to the Supplemental Security Income/State 
Supplementary Payment (SSI/SSP) budget. The Governor’s budget includes $3.7 billion General Fund in 
2024-25 for the SSI/SSP program, including CAPI. The average monthly caseload in this program is 
estimated to be 1.1 million recipients in 2024-25. The Governor’s budget also includes a 3.2-percent 
federal SSI cost-of-living adjustment and maintains the 9.2-percent SSP increase, which took effect on 
January 1, 2024. These adjustments raise the maximum SSI/SSP grant levels to $1,183 per month for 
individuals and $2,023 per month for couples. CAPI benefits are equivalent to SSI/SSP benefits and have 
residency and income eligibility requirements. 

Other CalHHS Human Services Initiatives 
While not included in the budget summary documents, on a call with stakeholders this afternoon, 
Secretary Ghaly highlighted three specific major priorities for the California Health and Human Services 
Agency this year: 

 In the context of the Master Plan for Aging, rethinking how local aging service delivery works,
including the Area Agencies on Aging. The Secretary talked about supporting service delivery and
making it more consistent across every county and region.

 Creating a master plan for Developmental Services.
 Rate reform in foster care.

31



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 10 

Child Care 
The Governor’s budget maintains the child care commitments made in prior budgets, which includes 
$2.1 billion for roughly 146,000 new subsidized child care slots expected to be filled by 2024-25, 
working towards the goal of creating over 200,000 new slots by 2026-27. 

The Governor’s budget also maintains funding to implement the current memorandum of 
understanding between the state and Child Care Providers United – California and the parity provisions 
for non-represented providers pursuant to Chapter 193, Statutes of 2023 (SB 140) ($723.8 million 
General Fund). The Administration and stakeholders continue to work towards a single rate structure 
and an alternative methodology for estimating the costs of care. By July 2024, the State of California will 
submit a state plan to the federal Administration for Children and Families for approval of an alternative 
methodology. 

Immigration Services 
Temporary Protected Status Services 

The Governor’s budget reverts $10 million General Fund in 2023-24 and makes a reduction of $10 
million General Fund in 2024-25 and ongoing. The Governor’s budget maintains existing levels of 
ongoing funding for Immigration Services Funding and Unaccompanied Undocumented Minors Legal 
Services.  

California State University Legal Services 

The Governor’s budget reverts $5.2 million General Fund from 2023-24 and reduces $5.2 million 
General Fund in 2024-25 and ongoing. With this reduction, $1.8 million ongoing General Fund remains 
in the Governor’s budget for California State University Legal Services. 

Migration and Border Communities 

For several years, California has funded humanitarian services for migrants released from short-term 
federal custody in the Southern border region, including a $150 million one-time investment in 2023-
24. California cannot maintain its efforts without federal support and has continued to advocate to
Congress to provide federal funding to local communities that are receiving new arrivals. In the coming
months, the Administration will continue to assess operational needs in these humanitarian efforts for
possible consideration in the May Revision.

Developmental Services 
While the 2024-25 Governor’s budget proposal maintains funding levels in 2023-24 and 2024-25 to 
support the ongoing implementation of service provider rate reforms that have been implemented to-
date, the proposal shifts the final rate increase back to the original 2025-26 timeline (July 1, 2025). 
Additionally, the Administration notes the Department of Developmental Services will be developing, 
with stakeholder input, a Master Plan for Developmental Services over the next year to establish a more 
quality-driven and consumer-friendly experience for individuals and families receiving developmental 
services. A key element of this work will be a program management system to collect and analyze data 

32



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 11 

and make recommendations that emphasize quality, equity, and outcomes while improving regional 
center accountability. 

General Government 
Local Library Infrastructure 
The Governor’s budget proposes to pull back $131.3 million one-time General Fund of the $439 million 
in one-time General Fund support provided for the Local Library Infrastructure Grant Program in the 
2021 Budget Act and proposes to forgo planned one-time General Fund investments of $33 million in 
2024-25, $33 million in 2025-26, and $34 million in 2026-27. 

Statewide Library Broadband Services 
The Governor’s budget proposes to pull back $34 million of the $35 million provided to expand 
broadband access to isolated and under-served communities through a collaborative partnership of 
local education agencies and regional libraries due to low participation in the program. 

City of Fresno Public Infrastructure Plan 
The Governor has proposed delaying $100 million for the City of Fresno’s Public Infrastructure plan.  
The 2023-24 budget included $250 million to support the development of downtown Fresno. The 
Governor’s budget maintains $50 million for this purpose in 2023-24 and delays the remaining $200 
million by one year, resulting in $100 million being available in 2025-26 and 2026-27. 

Broadband 
Middle Mile Investments 
The Administration is proposing an additional $1.5 billion investment over two years ($250 million in 
2024-25 and $1.25 billion in 2025-26) for the California Department of Technology to complete the 
development of the statewide middle-mile network. Due to changes in scope and associated costs 
(including those due to inflation), additional funding will be necessary to complete the project and 
bring broadband connectivity to the state’s remaining unconnected and under-connected communities 
by December 31, 2026. 

Last Mile Grants 
The Administration is proposing to delay $100 million from 2024-25 to 2026-27 for last-mile 
infrastructure grants at the CPUC. This maintains the previously appropriated $1.45 billion and reflects 
future investments of $550 million General Fund over three years for a total of $2 billion. 

Broadband Loan Loss Reserve (BLLR) Fund 
The Governor has proposed a reduction of $250 million ($150 million in 2024-25 and $100 million in 
2025-26) for the BLLR. The proposal maintains $500 million for the program, with $175 million in 2023-
24, $150 million in 2024-25, and $175 million in 2025-26. 

33



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 12 

Local Public Safety Investments 
Juvenile Justice Realignment Funding 
With the final closure of all Division of Juvenile Justice (DJJ) facilities on June 30, 2023 and the 
associated transition of all youth in DJJ custody to counties, the full responsibility of the juvenile justice 
system – pursuant to SB 823 (Chapter 337, Statutes of 2020) and SB 92 (Chapter 18, Statutes of 2021) – 
now resides with county governments.  

The Governor’s budget details several important elements regarding Juvenile Justice Realignment Block 
Grant (JJRBG) funding: 

 Consistent with statutory provisions, counties will receive $208.8 million in JJRBG grant funding
in 2024-25, which is intended to support counties’ responsibility for the care, treatment and
custody of the realigned population.

 Additionally, the budget highlights that – pursuant to an important provision negotiated in SB
823 – an estimated $16.2 million in growth funding (for a total of $225 million in statewide
funding) also will be available to counties in 2024-25. Pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code
1991(b), the JJRBG, beginning in 2024-25, will be adjusted by the growth rate applicable to the
Juvenile Justice Growth Special Account in 2011 Realignment. Any growth attributable to the
JJRBG will roll into the base to create the subsequent base funding level for the subsequent
year.

 As for the requirement in SB 823 that the JJRBG funding distribution methodology be revisited,
the budget indicates that – despite the January 10, 2024 deadline for refining this methodology
– the Administration is proposing to maintain the existing distribution methodology for 2024-
25, citing a need to (1) provide more time for the Administration to engage the Legislature and
stakeholders on identifying the best approach to refining an allocation methodology that will
lead to improved outcomes for realigned youth and (2) create greater funding certainty and
stability for counties in recognition of the fiscal environment.

Lastly, the budget also reflects a reduction in the state corrections budget of $909,000 associated with 
an alignment of contract resources for maintaining shuttered DJJ facilities with actual needs. 

Community Corrections Planning (CCP) Grants 
The 2024-25 budget proposes to eliminate $7.95 million for statewide Community Corrections Planning 
grants, which are meant to support ongoing implementation of AB 109 (2011) and the associated work 
of the CCP. These fixed-amount grants determined by county size have been available to counties since 
implementation of 2011 Realignment, with receipt conditioned upon the submission of required 
information to the Board of State and Community Corrections (BSCC) as well as an update of the 
county’s CCP plan. 

Proposition 47 
As a result of the implementation of Proposition 47 (2014), the Department of Finance estimates net 
state correctional system savings of $87.8 million in 2024-25, which will be dedicated to three policy 
priorities identified by the initiative: (1) behavioral health treatment and diversion programs (65 

34

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB823
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202120220SB92


Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 13 

percent), (2) programs to improve outcomes for K-12 students and reduce truancies (25 percent), and 
(3) support for victims’ services through trauma recovery centers (10 percent).

Community Corrections Performance Incentive Grant (SB 678) 
For the last three fiscal years, counties’ SB 678 funding has been based on each jurisdiction’s highest 
funding level for the three years prior to 2021-22 in recognition of the pandemic’s impact on probation 
population levels. The Governor’s budget proposes to revert to the previous funding methodology, 
which would produce a statewide SB 678 funding level of $113.6 million. The Governor’ budget 
narrative suggests probation populations data appear to be normalizing to pre-pandemic levels. 

Post-Release Community Supervision Funding 
In recognition of increases in post-release community supervision responsibilities associated with 
implementation of Proposition 57 (2016), the Governor’s budget contains $4.4 million for county 
probation departments.  

Public Defense Pilot Program 
The Governor’s budget proposes to eliminate the 2023-24 allocation of $40 million for the third and 
final year of funding for the Public Defense Pilot Program administered by the Board of State and 
Community Corrections. Recall that the program was originally funded in 2021-22 at $50 million per 
year over three years; the Governor proposed to revert the final year of funding in the 2023-24 budget, 
but the Legislature ultimately restored $40 million for this purpose in the current year. It is that $40 
million that the Governor’s spending plan released today proposes to claw back. 

State Corrections 
The Governor’s budget provides $14.5 billion in funding for the California Department of Corrections 
and Rehabilitation (CDCR), of which $4.1 billion is directed for health, mental health, and dental care 
services for those in custody. The Governor’s budget summary includes details on projected prison and 
parole populations; the state institutional population is expected to continue its downward trend, while 
the parolee population is projected to remain stable – at about 35,000 statewide – over the next several 
years. 

Prison Closures and Capacity 
The Governor’s budget summarizes the state’s recent actions to terminate contracts for out-of-state 
and in-state prison capacity as well as recent prison closures: Deuel Vocational Institution (Tracy, San 
Joaquin County) – closed as of September 2021; California Correctional Center (Susanville, Lassen 
County) – closed in June 2023; and various facility deactivations across six prisons last year. These 
activities have resulted in $465 million per year in ongoing savings. Finally, CDCR previously announced 
plans to close Chuckawalla Valley State Prison (Blythe, Riverside County) by March 2025, which is 
expected to generate annual savings of $148 million. 

35

https://www.bscc.ca.gov/public-defense-pilot-program/


Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 14 

Rehabilitation and Reentry; Reimagining San Quentin with the California Model 
The Governor’s budget discusses ongoing investments in community correctional reentry centers and 
various post-release reentry programs and services to support the state’s efforts to improve community 
reintegration outcomes and reduce recidivism. The Governor’s budget proposes various modest 
increases to adjust contract rates to address inflationary trends and ensure reentry programming 
remains sustainable over time. 

Additionally, the budget references the Governor’s March 2023 announcement to transform San 
Quentin State Prison into the San Quentin Rehabilitation Center meant to expand and enhance 
rehabilitative and educational opportunities. A multi-disciplinary Advisory Council created last year 
released this report earlier this month that provides recommendations for achieving the cultural and 
transformational change needed to reimagine San Quentin and implement The California Model.  

Significant Budget Adjustments 
The Governor’s budget proposes to make various administrative reductions, reversions, transfers of 
unobligated funds, and spending delays to help address the budget shortfall.  

Judicial Branch 
The judicial branch budget supports the operations of the Supreme Court, courts of appeal, superior 
courts, the Habeas Corpus Resource Center, and the Judicial Council. The Governor’s budget provides 
$5.2 billion in judicial branch resources, the vast majority of which ($3 billion) is directed to trial court 
operations.  

Trial Court Reserves 
This budget increases trial court reserve caps – the reserve balance of its total operating budget from 
the previous fiscal year that each superior court can maintain locally - from three percent to five 
percent; the five smallest courts would be permitted to hold up to $100,000 in reserves. This change is 
meant to give the local court additional flexibility and to plan for large, one-time expenses such as 
technology projects or facility repairs. 

Dependency Counsel 
The Governor’s budget maintains the expected 2024-25 statewide dependency counsel funding level. It 
assumes $252.7 million in total funding, $216.7 million General Fund and $66 million in federal draw 
down. 

Additional Budget Adjustments 
Other notable components of the judicial branch budget include: 

 Court Facilities and Construction Fund Backfill – $80 million in 2024-25 and $119 million ongoing to
backfill an expected shortfall in the State Court Facilities Construction Fund and to maintain existing
services.

36

https://www.cdcr.ca.gov/wp-content/uploads/2023/06/FINAL-San-Quentin-Report_1.3.24.pdf


Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 15 

 Trial Court Trust Fund (TCTF) Backfill – $83.1 million ongoing to continue backfill of TCTF given
ongoing revenue declines.

 Trial Court Employee Benefit and Retirement Costs – $15.8 million ongoing annually to cover health
and retirement benefits for trial court employees.

 Self-Help Centers – $19.1 million ongoing annual increase to continue current baseline funding level
for self-help centers across the state.

Statewide Criminal Justice Investments for Safe and Secure
Communities 
Included in a lengthy narrative on the Governor’s continued commitments to public safety and funding 
is the following table that details various public safety investments since 2022-23 and as proposed 
through 2025-26: 

Notably, the Organized 
Retail Theft local law 
enforcement grants are 
proposed to be funded in 
2024-25 but not in future 
budget years. The CHP’s 
Retail Theft Task Force is 
proposed to be funded at 
$6 million in 2024-25 and 
at $10.5 million in 2025-
26. Additionally, the
budget proposes to
increase the Military
Department’s existing
drug interdiction effort by
$15 million in 2024-25
and $25 million in 2025-
26. This initiative seeks to
prevent drug trafficking
by transnational criminal
organizations, with a
specific focus on
supporting law
enforcement agencies at
all levels of government –
including tribal
governments – in their
efforts to combat
fentanyl.

37



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 16 

Significant budget adjustments to help address the budget shortfall included the following: 

 BSCC Loan – The Governor’s budget proposes to make a $100 million loan from the Cannabis Tax
Fund to the General Fund from resources not currently planned for operational or programmatic
purposes.

 Adult Reentry Grant – The Governor’s budget proposes to impose a one-year pause on the $57
million intended for the Adult Reentry Grant in 2024-25 along with a reallocation of this funding
across three years beginning in 2025-26 (at $19 million per year).

 Cal VIP Grant – The Governor’s budget proposes to reduce funding for the California Violence
Intervention and Prevention Grant (Cal VIP) by $9 million, which will be replaced in a like amount by
funding from the newly created Gun and Ammunition Tax pursuant to AB 28 (2023). Beginning in
2025-26, it is estimated that up to $75 million annually will be appropriated from the gun and
ammunition tax to BSCC for purposes of administering and awarding Cal VIP grants.

 Firearm Relinquishment Programs – The Governor’s budget proposes to reduce 2023-24 funding to
two firearm relinquishment programs: $21 million decrease for the Office of Emergency Services’
Gun Buyback Program and $20 million decrease (of $40 million appropriated for this purpose) to
the Judicial Council’s Firearm Relinquishment Grant Program.

 Proud Parenting Grant Program – The Governor’s budget proposes to impose a reduction of
$835,000 annually beginning in 2024-25 for the Proud Parenting Grant Program administered by
the BSCC. These grants are available to county probation departments, tribes, county offices of
education, and community-based organizations to support young parents (aged 25 and younger)
who are system-involved.

Department of Justice 
Notable Department of Justice (DOJ) budget adjustments include the following: 

 Controlled Substance Utilization Review and Evaluation System (CURES) Fee – The Governor’s budget
proposes to increase the CURES fee from $9 to $15 beginning April 1, 2025 to cover DOJ’s actual
costs to administer the program.

 Litigation Deposits Funds – To address the budget shortfall, $100 million is proposed to be loaned
from the Litigation Deposits Fund to the General Fund, which is on top of a similar loan of $400
million executed in the 2023-24 budget.

Office of Emergency Services 
The Governor’s budget proposes an increase of $6.4 million State Emergency Telephone Number 
Account funds as well as an additional 12 positions to continue implementation of the California Radio 
Interoperable System. Additionally, the budget proposes various budget delays and reversions to help 
address the budget shortfall. 

38

https://www.bscc.ca.gov/s_cpgpcalvipgrant/
https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=202320240AB28


Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 17 

1991 and 2011 Realignment Revenue Estimates 
As is customary, the budget estimates 1991 and 2011 Realignment revenues. Note that these estimates 
will be updated at the May Revision. At the very highest level, sales tax performance continues to show 
positive growth according to the Administration’s projections, while Vehicle License Fee revenue 
remains relatively flat over the next year or more. See more details in the charts below. 

39



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 18 

Homelessness 
The 2024-25 Governor’s budget proposal does not reduce the previously planned, 2023-24 investments 
in the Encampment Resolution Grant Program ($400 million) or Homeless Housing, Assistance, and 
Prevention (HHAP) program ($1 billion). However, the proposal does not include new funding to extend 
either program into 2024-25. Instead, the Administration notes that, with few exceptions, the overall 
budget proposal defers all new, discretionary spending discussion to this spring. The Administration 
additionally states that they are committed to working closely with the Legislature on additional 
funding to support local governments’ response to the homelessness crisis – assuming local 
governments deliver on their HHAP 3 and 4 commitments and HHAP 5 regional planning requirements. 
In the Governor’s press conference, the Governor again reiterated an interest in additional local 
accountability measures with these funds and an interest in focusing resources on encampments. 

The 2024-25 Governor’s budget proposal also includes several reversions, delays, or shifts related to 
other homelessness programs: 

40



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 19 

 HHAP Funding – delays from 2023-24 to 2025-26 $260 million to more properly align budgeting
with when the funds will be accessed/expended.

 Veteran Housing and Homelessness Prevention Program – reverts $50 million General Fund for
the Veteran Housing and Homelessness Prevention Program.

 Housing Navigators – reduces $13.7 million General Fund ongoing for Housing Navigators.

Housing 
The Governor’s budget makes $1.2 billion in General Fund reductions for housing programs over a 
multi-year period. In addition, the Governor included housing programs, including planning and 
infrastructure grants, in a list of program areas where the state would promote “belt tightening” 
through additional audits and evaluations of state spending. Specific General Fund reductions include 
the following:  

 Regional Early Action Planning Grants (REAP 2.0) – $300 million reversion from $600 million
allocated to regional agencies for this purpose in 2021–22.

 Multifamily Housing Program (MHP) – $250 million reversion from MHP, which received $250 million
in 2022–23 and $100 million in 2023–24, leaving $75 million in 2023–24.

 Foreclosure Intervention Program – $247.5 million reversion ($85 million in 2024–25, $100 million in
2025–26, $62.5 million in 2026–27).

 Infill Infrastructure Grant Program (IIG) – $200 million reversion from the IIG from $225 million
dedicated to the program in 2023–24.

 CalHome Program – $152.5 million reversion, which received $250 million in 2022–23 and $100
million in 2023–24.

Natural Resources and Environmental Protection 
In addition to budget proposals under the Climate Change section, the Governor’s budget includes 
$489.9 million of General Fund solutions in non-climate Natural Resources and Environmental 
Protection related programs to achieve a balanced budget.  

Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE) 

In recognition of the continued impact of climate change on wildlands in the state and longer, more 
severe fire seasons, the Governor’s budget makes further investments to enhance CAL FIRE’s fire 
protection capacity, including air attack base infrastructure improvements that will facilitate the 
operation of the new federal C-130 aircraft and night-flying helicopter operations. Other significant 
adjustments include:  

 66-Hour Workweek – An increase of $198.9 million ($197.1 million General Fund) and 338 positions
in fiscal year 2024-25, and $770.4 million ($756.3 million General Fund) and 2,457 positions
ongoing, phased in over five years to reflect the 2022 Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
between CAL FIRE Local 2881 (Bargaining Unit 8) and the State of California.

41



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 20 

 Training Center – An increase of $18.7 million one-time General Fund for acquisition of property for
an additional CAL FIRE training center, which is necessary for the implementation of the 66-hour
work week and to improve CAL FIRE’s efficiency and ability to meet peak demands on the training
program.

 Ramona Air Attack Base Reconfiguration – An increase of $12 million one-time General Fund to
reconfigure the fire retardant loading pits at Ramona Air Attack Base.

 Helitack/Air Attack Bases – An increase of $5.8 million one-time General Fund for the Boggs
Mountain Helitack Base, Hollister Air Attack Base/Bear Valley Helitack Base, and fuel system project
at the Rohnerville Air Attack Base.

 Unit Headquarters and Fire Stations – An increase of $87.8 million one-time Public Buildings
Construction Fund and $640,000 one-time General Fund to relocate various unit headquarters and
fire stations including Humboldt Del Norte Unit, Sonoma Lake Napa Unit, Glen Ellen Fire Station,
Butte Fire Station, Parkfield Fire Station, and Hayfork Fire Station.

Safe and Sustainable Pest Management 

The Department of Pesticide Regulation (DPR) plays a vital role in developing and supporting pest 
management innovations necessary to meet the state’s climate reality. 

The DPR Fund, which is primarily comprised of the mill assessment, is currently at a structural 
imbalance. The Governor’s budget includes legislation to increase the mill assessment to support 
programs and address the DPR Fund structural imbalance. In addition, the legislation includes changes 
relative to collection of the mill assessment, data review, registration, and enforcement.  

The Governor’s budget includes $33.3 million ongoing DPR Fund and GGRF, phased in over three years, 
to support DPR’s essential work including efforts that will increase the availability of sustainable pest 
management tools and practices. More specifically, Governor’s budget includes:  

 Streamline Processes and Support Alternatives  – An increase of $17.9 million ongoing DPR Fund to
accelerate pesticide evaluation and registration timelines to bring safer, effective pesticides to
market faster; support innovative alternatives research and adoption; develop and implement a
public, stakeholder-engaged, and scientifically-based priority pesticide process; and provide general
administrative support.

 Strengthen Statewide Services  – An increase of $8.6 million ongoing DPR Fund and $592,000
ongoing GGRF to support statewide and cross-jurisdictional enforcement and compliance, pesticide
monitoring and data evaluation, and risk mitigation and regulation development.

 Provide Critical Support for Local Partners and Communities  – An increase of $6.1 million ongoing
DPR Fund and $125,000 ongoing GGRF to provide training and compliance support for County
Agricultural Commissioners, and local engagement and transparency.

Protecting Water Quality and Habitat 

The Governor’s budget includes $6.1 million Waste Discharge Permit Fund in 2023-24, and $7 million 
ongoing for the State and Regional Water Boards to conduct essential activities to protect wetlands. To 

42



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 21 

address the projected budget shortfall, the Governor’s budget also proposes the following General 
Fund solutions:  

 Cleanup in Vulnerable Communities Initiative – A delay of $175 million General Fund for the
Department of Toxic Substances Control’s Cleanup in Vulnerable Communities Initiative Program.
The Governor’s budget includes $85 million in funding for the program in 2025-26 and $90 million
in 2026-27.

 Underground Storage Tank Cleanup Fund Loan – A budgetary loan of $150 million, along with a
one-year repayment deferral of an existing $50.7 million budgetary loan, from the Underground
Storage Tank Cleanup Fund to the General Fund is proposed from resources not currently projected
to be used for operational or programmatic purposes.

 California Beverage Container Recycling Fund Loan – A budgetary loan of $125 million, along with a
one-year repayment deferral of an existing $25 million budgetary loan, from the California Beverage
Container Recycling Fund to the General Fund is proposed from resources not currently projected to
be used for operational or programmatic purposes.

 Outdoor Equity Grants Program – A reduction of $25 million General Fund for outdoor
environmental education and access programs through the Outdoor Equity Grants Program under
Chapter 675, Statutes of 2019 (AB 209). The Governor’s budget maintains $90 million General Fund
previously allocated for this program.

 Urban Waterfront Funding – A reversion of $12.3 million General Fund for various projects in urban
areas adjacent to rivers and waterways throughout the state. The Governor’s budget maintains $142
million General Fund previously allocated for this program.

 Pesticide Notification – A reversion of $2.6 million General Fund related to the Pesticide Notification
Network previously appropriated in the 2021 Budget Act. The Governor’s budget maintains $7.3
million previously allocated for this purpose.

Climate Change 
Of the $54 billion the 2021 and 2022 Budget Acts allocated over a five-year period for a multitude of 
climate related investments, the Governor’s budget maintains approximately $48.3 billion of these 
investments, including stretching the funding over a seven-year period.  

To address the projected budget shortfall, the Governor’s budget proposes $6.7 billion of General Fund 
solutions in climate-related programs including: $2.9 billion in reductions; $1.9 billion in delays of 
expenditures to future years; $1.8 billion in shifts to other funds, primarily the Greenhouse Gas 
Reduction Fund (GGRF). The Governor’s budget also includes an additional $159.1 million in new 
climate investments. 

Transportation 
The Governor’s budget maintains $13.6 billion of the $13.8 billion that the 2022-23 budget included for 
transportation programs and projects. To aid in closing the $37.8 billion overall budget deficit, the 
Governor proposes $200 million in General Fund reductions, $791 million in fund shifts, and $3.1 billion 
in delays across various programs. Fiscal solutions to address the budget problem include:  

43



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 22 

 Active Transportation – A reduction of $200 million from the General Fund to the Active
Transportation Program (ATP). To ensure that previously awarded ATP projects are not impacted by
this proposal, the reduction would be backfilled by future ATP funding. In total, this would leave
$850 million in one-time General Fund for the ATP Program.

 Transit and Intercity Rail Capital Program (TIRCP) Competitive Grants – A shift of $529.7 million of
General Fund expenditures to the GGRF.

 TIRCP Formula Grants – A delay of $1 billion of formula funds from 2024-25 to 2025-26, leaving $1
billion in 2024-25. Additionally, the Governor’s budget proposes to shift $261.4 million of the
remaining $1 billion in 2024-25 from the General Fund to the GGRF.

In addition to the fiscal solutions noted above, the budget proposes to modify the program schedule to 
accommodate the new seven-year funding horizon for the TIRCP competitive grants, ATP, and the 
Highways to Boulevards Program.  

Zero-Emission Vehicles 
The Governor’s budget maintains nearly all the $10 billion that was committed in the 2021-22 and 
2022-23 budgets for investments in the state’s Zero-Emission Vehicles (ZEV) agenda but extends the 
funding horizon from five to seven years and includes the following reductions ($38.1 million), fund 
shifts ($475.3 million), and funding delays ($600 million):   

 Expenditure Reductions – A reduction of $38.1 million General Fund for various programs including
Drayage Trucks and Infrastructure Pilot Project ($23.5 million), ZEV Manufacturing Grants ($7.3
million), and Emerging Opportunities ($7.3 million). The Governor’s budget maintains $477 million
previously allocated for these programs.

 Fund Shifts – A shift of $475.3 million General Fund to the GGRF in the current year for various
programs including ZEV Fueling Infrastructure Grants ($218.5 million); Drayage Trucks and
Infrastructure ($157 million); Transit Buses and Infrastructure ($28.5 million); and Clean Trucks, Buses
and Off-Road Equipment ($71.3 million).

 Funding Delays – A delay of $600 million GGRF from 2024-25 to 2027-28 across various programs
including Clean Cars 4 All and Other Equity Projects ($45 million), ZEV Fueling Infrastructure Grants
($120 million), Equitable At-home Charging ($80 million), Drayage Trucks and Infrastructure ($98
million), Clean Trucks, Buses and Off-Road Equipment ($137 million), Community-Based Plans,
Projects and Support/Sustainable Community Strategies ($100 million), and Charter Boats
Compliance ($20 million). This delay enables a shift of $600 million General Fund expenditures to
the GGRF for other programs.

Wildfire and Forest Resilience 
The Governor’s budget retains $2.7 billion of the $2.8 billion in the 2021-22 and 2022-23 budgets for 
investments into programs that continue to strengthen forest and wildfire resilience across the state. 
The funding will be provided over a five-year period rather than a four-year period as previously 
budgeted.  

44



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 23 

The Governor’s budget includes $100.7 million in General Fund reductions and $162.5 million in fund 
shifts across various programs and continues $200 million from the GGRF consistent with Chapter 626, 
Statutes of 2018 (SB 901) and Chapter 258, Statutes of 2021 (SB 155). Specific proposals to help achieve 
a balanced budget include:   

 Expenditure Reductions – A reversion of $43.5 million from the Biomass to Hydrogen/Biofuels pilot,
$27.7 million from the Conservancy Project Implementation in High-Risk Regions, $12 million from
the Home Hardening Pilot, $5.7 million from Monitoring and Research, $5.3 million from Prescribed
Fire and Hand Crews, $3.6 million from Forest Legacy, and $2.9 million from the Interagency Forest
Data Hub.

 Fund Shifts – A shift of $162.5 million General Fund to the GGRF across 2023-24 and 2024-25,
including Fire Prevention Grants ($82 million shift within 2023-24), Stewardship of State-Owned
Land ($34.5 million shift to 2024-25), Department of Forestry and Fire Protection Unit Fire
Prevention Projects ($26 million shift to 2024-25), and Regional Forest and Fire Capacity ($20 million
shift to 2024-25).

Water 
The Governor’s budget maintains $7.3 billion of the $8.7 billion committed over multiple years to 
drought resilience and response programs in the 2021 and 2022 Budget Acts. To help address the 
budget deficit, the Governor proposes $796.8 million in General Fund reductions and $100 million in 
delays across various programs. The Governor’s budget also includes $159.1 million in new investments 
to support flood protection, levee repair, and restoration of the Salton Sea. 

To address the projected budget shortfall, the Governor’s budget proposes the following General Fund 
solutions: 

 Watershed Climate Resilience Programs – A reversion of $88.4 million General Fund and a reduction
of $350 million over the next two years for various watershed climate resilience programs within the
Department of Water Resources and the Wildlife Conservation Board. The Governor’s budget
maintains $56 million previously allocated to these programs.

 Water Recycling – A reversion of $174.4 million General Fund and a delay of $100 million until 2025-
26 for water recycling and groundwater cleanup. The Governor’s budget maintains $348 million
previously allocated to this program.

 Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances – A reversion of $71.6 million General Fund and reduction of $30
million in 2024-25 for Per-and Polyfluoroalkyl support. The Governor’s budget maintains $53 million
previously allocated to this program.

 Dam Safety – A reversion of $50 million General Fund for dam safety investments. The Governor’s
budget maintains $50 million previously allocated to this program.

 State Water Efficiency and Enhancement Program – A shift of $20.6 million General Fund to the
GGRF for the State Water Efficiency and Enhancement Program. Funding being shifted for the
Program is delayed to 2024-25.

45



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 24 

 Relief for Small Farmers – A reversion of $12.9 million California Emergency Relief Fund for drought
relief to small farms. The Governor’s budget maintains $17 million previously allocated to this
program.

 Forecasted Informed Reservoir Operations/Snow Surveys – A reduction of $6.75 million General Fund
ongoing for Forecast Informed Reservoir Operations for runoff forecasting. The Governor’s budget
maintains $10 million ongoing in baseline support for the program.

 On-Farm Water Use and Agriculture Technical Assistance – A reversion of $6 million California
Emergency Relief for on-farm water use and agriculture technical assistance. The Governor’s budget
maintains $9 million previously allocated to this program.

Flood Protection 
The Governor’s January Budge includes $93.9 million in new, one-time General Fund to support the 
following flood safety efforts:  

 $33 million General Fund to support the state cost share of continuing U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
projects and Urban Flood Risk Reduction projects that address flood risk reduction, as well as the
associated state operations costs to implement the projects.

 $31.3 million General Fund to support the continuation of existing multi-benefit flood risk reduction
projects in the Central Valley.

 $29.6 million General Fund to address storm damage at State Plan of Flood Control facilities and
State-owned Delta lands for critical repairs associated with the 2023 storms.

Salton Sea Management Program 
The Governor’s budget includes $65.2 million General Fund for the Salton Sea Management Program 
(SSMP) to continue progress towards meeting the requirements of the State Water Resources Control 
Board Order which requires the state to construct 29,800 acres of habitat and dust suppression projects 
at the exposed lakebed at the Salton Sea by 2028. Specifically, the funding included in the Governor’s 
budget will support technical assistance and project management operations and maintenance, 
monitoring environmental compliance, conducting restoration project planning, and improving public 
outreach and communication.  

Nature-Based Solutions 
The Governor’s budget proposes to maintain $1.4 billion of the $1.6 billion committed in the 2021-22 
and 2022-23 budgets for nature-based solutions. The General Fund solutions to help close the budget 
deficit include:  

 Redondo Beach Wetlands Restoration – A reversion of $10 million General Fund for Redondo Beach
Wetlands Restoration.

 Resource Conservation Investments Strategies – A reversion of $5 million General Fund for Resource
Conservation Investments Strategies.

46



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 25 

Extreme Heat 
The Governor’s budget reduces by $285 million the funding committed to programs to address extreme 
heat included in the 2021-22 and 2022-23 budgets. The Governor’s budget maintains $364 million of 
the $649 million over multiple years. To address the projected budget shortfall, the following General 
Fund solutions are proposed:  

 Extreme Heat and Community Resilience Program – A net reduction of $40.1 million for the Extreme
Heat and Community Resilience Program which includes a reversion of $40.1 million and a shift of
$70 million General Fund to the GGRF. Funding being shifted for the Program is delayed to 2024-25.
The Governor’s budget maintains $95 million previously allocated to this program.

 Urban Greening – A shift of $23.8 million General Fund to the GGRF, which maintains $75 million
over four years for the Urban Greening Program. Funding for the program is delayed to 2024-25.

 Enhanced Protections for Vulnerable Populations – A shift of $15.6 million General Fund for Enhanced
Protections for Vulnerable Populations to the Labor and Workforce Development Fund, which
maintains $16 million over three years for this program.

Community Resilience 
The Governor’s budget proposes to retain $1.2 billion of the $1.9 billion for community resilience 
investments provided for in the 2021-22 and 2022-23 budgets. Additionally, the Governor’s budget 
reflects $89.8 million of General Fund reductions across various programs, including:   

 Regional Climate Resilience – A reversion of $25 million General Fund and a reduction of $50 million
for the Regional Climate Resilience Program at the Office of Planning and Research. The Governor’s
budget maintains $25 million previously allocated to this program.

 Regional Climate Collaboratives – A reversion of $9.8 million General Fund for Regional Climate
Collaboratives Program at the Strategic Growth Council within the Office of Planning and Research.
The Governor’s budget maintains $10 million previously allocated to this program.

 Climate Adaptation and Resilience Planning Grants – A reversion of $5 million General Fund for the
Climate Adaptation and Resilience Planning Grants at the Office of Planning and Research. The
Governor’s budget maintains $20 million previously allocated to this program.

Coastal Resilience 
The Governor’s budget maintains $660 million of the $1.3 billion from the 2021 and 2022 Budget Acts 
for coastal resilience investments over multiple years. The Governor’s budget reflects $452 million in 
General Fund reductions and $36.8 million in fund shifts across several coastal protection and 
adaptation programs, including: 

 Sea Level Rise – A reversion of $220.9 million General Fund for Sea Level Rise activities. The
Governor’s budget maintains $333.6 million previously allocated for this program.

 Coastal Protection and Adaptation – A reversion of $171.1 million General Fund for Coastal
Protection and Adaptation activities. The Governor’s budget maintains $154.9 million previously
allocated for this program.

47



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 26 

 SB 1 Implementation – A reversion of $25 million General Fund and shift of $36.8 million to the
GGRF in 2024-25 for implementation of Chapter 236, Statutes of 2021 (SB 1). The Governor’s budget
maintains $77 million previously allocated for this program.

 Ocean Protection – A reversion of $35 million General Fund for Ocean Protection funding at the
Ocean Protection Council. The Governor’s budget maintains $65 million previously allocated for this
program.

Sustainable Agriculture 
The Governor’s budget proposes to maintain $1 billion of the $1.1 billion provided for in the 2021 and 
2022 Budget Acts over multiple years for climate smart agriculture investments. The Governor’s budget 
includes $79.1 million in General Fund reductions and $24 million in fund shifts across various 
programs, including:  

 California Nutrition Incentive Program – A reversion of $33.2 million General Fund for the California
Nutrition Incentive Program. The Governor’s budget maintains $1.8 million previously allocated to
this program.

 Livestock Methane Reduction – A shift of $24 million General Fund to the GGRF for the Livestock
Methane Reduction Program. Funding being shifted for the program is delayed to 2024-25.

 Enteric Methane Incentives – A reversion of $23 million General Fund for the Enteric Methane
Incentives Program. The Governor’s budget maintains $2 million previously allocated to this
program.

 Farm to Community Food Hubs Program – A reversion of $14.4 million General Fund for the Farm to
Community Food Hubs Program. The Governor’s budget maintains $600,000 previously allocated to
this program.

 Healthy Refrigeration Grant Program – A reversion of $8.5 million General Fund for the Healthy
Refrigeration Grant Program. The Governor’s budget maintains $12 million previously allocated to
this program.

Energy 
The Governor’s budget proposes to maintain $6.6 billion of the $7.9 billion included in the 2022 Budget 
Act for energy investments to expedite the state’s transition to clean energy, fund critical grid reliability 
programs, and address energy affordability challenges. In addition to the $944 million reduced in the 
2023-24 budget, the Governor’s budget includes $419 million in General Fund reductions, $144 million 
in fund shifts, and $505 million in delays across various energy-related programs. 

The Governor’s budget would also retain $1 billion for the Clean Energy Reliability Investment Plan over 
three years but would delay the start of that funding until 2025-26 rather than 2023-24 as required by 
SB 846 (Chapter 239, Statutes of 2022).  

To address the projected budget shortfall, Governor’s budget proposes the following General Fund 
solutions:  

48



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 27 

 Capacity Building Grants – A reversion of $20 million General Fund for the Capacity Building Grants
Program at the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC). The Governor’s budget maintains $10
million for this program.

 Investments in Strategic Reliability Assets – A delay of $55 million General Fund for the Electricity
Supply Reliability Reserve Fund Program from 2024-25 to 2025-26. The Governor’s budget
maintains the full $2.37 billion General Fund to the DWR.

 Distributed Electricity Backup Assets Program – A delay of $50 million General Fund for the
Distributed Electricity Backup Assets Program at the California Energy Commission (CEC), with $25
million delayed until 2025-26 and $25 million delayed to 2026-27. The Governor’s budget maintains
$595 million, with $495 million in 2023-24, $25 million in 2024-25, $50 million in 2025-26, and $25
million in 2026-27 for the program and $100 million for DWR for this program through 2027-28.

 Carbon Removal Innovation – A reversion of $40 million General Fund for the Carbon Removal
Innovation Program at the CEC. The Governor’s budget maintains $35 million to the CEC for this
program.

 Residential Solar and Storage – A delay of $200 million General Fund ($75 million in 2024-25 and
$125 million in 2025-26) for the Residential Solar and Storage Program. Instead, $100 million in
2026-27 and $100 million in 2027-28 would be available. The Governor’s budget maintains the $630
million to the CPUC for this program.

 Incentives for Long Duration Storage – A shift of $56.9 million General Fund to the GGRF in 2024-25
for the Long Duration Storage Program at the CEC. The Governor’s budget maintains $330 million
for the program with this shift.

 Oroville Pump Storage – A delay of $200 million General Fund ($90 million in 2024-25 and $110
million in 2025-26) for the Oroville Pump Storage Project. The delay results in $100 million General
Fund in 2026-27 and $100 million in 2027-28. The Governor’s budget maintains the full $240 million
to the DWR for this project.

 Food Production Investment – A reversion of $18.8 million General Fund for the Food Production
Investment Program at the CEC. The Governor’s budget maintains $46.2 million to the CEC for this
program.

Other Climate Related Issues 
The Governor’s budget proposes additional General Fund solutions in other climate related programs, 
including:  

 Climate Innovation – A reduction of the planned investment of $475 million General Fund in the
Climate Innovation Program beginning in 2024-25.

 Infill Infrastructure Grant Program – A reversion of $200 million General Fund for the Infill
Infrastructure Grant Program at the Department of Housing and Community Development. The
Governor’s budget maintains $225 million General Fund over two years for this program.

 Oil and Gas Well Capping – A shift of $50 million General Fund to the GGRF for the Oil and Gas Well
Capping program at the Department of Conservation. Funding being shifted for the program is
delayed to 2024-25.

49



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 28 

 Goods Movement Workforce Training Facility – A delay of $40 million General Fund for a Goods
Movement Workforce Training Facility in Southern California. The Governor’s budget includes $20
million General Fund for this purpose in both 2025-26 and 2026-27.

 Low Carbon Economy Program – A reduction of $15 million General Fund for the Low Carbon
Economy Grant Program at the California Workforce Development Board. The Governor’s budget
maintains $30 million ($15 million General Fund and $15 million GGRF) over two years for this
program.

 Displaced Oil and Gas Worker Pilot Fund – A reversion of $10 million General Fund for the Displaced
Oil and Gas Worker Pilot Fund at the Employment Development Department. The Governor’s
budget maintains $30 million General Fund for this program.

 Compost Permitting Pilot Program – A reversion of $6.7 million General Fund for the Compost
Permitting Pilot Program at the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery. The Governor’s
budget maintains $800,000 previously allocated to this program.

 Electric Homes – A reduction of $6.4 million General Fund in the California Electric Homes Program
by the CEC.

K-12 Education
While the economic downturn naturally results in a lower Proposition 98 guarantee, the Governor’s 
budget holds per pupil funding relatively flat for the budget year. The delayed tax receipts necessitated 
a revised amount from the 2023-24 budget; however, the Administration has proposed statutory 
changes to address about $8 billion of this decrease to avoid impacting existing school budgets. The 
Guarantee continues to be in a Test 1 for all years 2022-23 through 2024-25, meaning that the funding 
level of the Guarantee is equal to about 39 percent of General Fund revenues, plus local property tax 
revenues.  

In addition, the Governor has proposed a withdrawal from the Public School System Stabilization 
Account (PSSSA) – the special Rainy Day Fund for Proposition 98 – of $5.7 billion to maintain support 
for Local Educational Agencies and Community College Districts over 2023-24 and 2024-25. The 
balance continues to trigger school district reserve caps in 2024-25. 

Proposition 51, approved by voters in 2016, authorized $9 billion in state General Obligation bonds to 
support K-12 and community college school facilities construction. With these funds nearly exhausted, 
the Administration indicates that it expects to enter into negotiations with the Legislature on their 
education facilities bond proposals to reach agreement on a bond proposal to be considered in the 
November 2024 election. 

Higher Education 
The Governor’s budget reflects the third year of the state’s multi-year compacts with the University of 
California (UC) and California State University (CSU); for both systems, the Governor’s budget proposes 
to defer the planned 2024-25 Compact investments in both systems in 2024-25. These deferrals are 
intended to maintain funding at 2023-24 levels, while enabling both systems to utilize interim financing 
structures or other internal borrowing to support spending at the planned 2024-25 Compact levels.  

50



Summary of the Governor’s 2024-25 January Budget Proposal 
January 10, 2024  page 29 

What’s Next? 
The full budget committees in each house will meet on January 23 to hear an overview of the 
Governor’s proposed spending plan. Trailer bill language (TBL) to implement various budget proposals 
is due to the Legislature on February 1. We will continue to keep you apprised on budget developments 
going forward and welcome your questions about both the budget substance and process. Should you 
have questions on any aspect of the January budget proposal or the budget process in general, please 
do not hesitate to reach out to the UCC Advocacy Team.  

51


	Agenda-Jan 24 2024
	Minutes Nov 15 2023
	2024 Ch V-Ch appointment
	UCC 2024 BOD meeting schedule
	Review of 2023 UCC advo priorities
	Draft UCC 2024 advo priorities all
	Prop 1 Staff Reco
	AB 531 (Irwin) Governor Request Signature 9.27.23
	Behavioral Health Services Act Implementation letter - Governor 9.25.23
	Summary of Gov's proposed 24-25 budget
	UCC Summary of Gov Jan 2024-25 budget



